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UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, DC 20549

Form 10-K/A-2

For Annual and Transition Reports
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934

þ ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934
For the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2003

or

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF
1934

Commission file number 1-12691

Input/Output, Inc.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter)

Delaware
(State or Other Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or Organization)

22-2286646
(I.R.S. Employer
Identification No.)

12300 Parc Crest Drive
Stafford, Texas 77477

(Address of Principal Executive Offices, Including Zip Code)

(281) 933-3339

(Registrant�s Telephone Number, Including Area Code)

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) of the Act:

Title of Each Class Name of Each Exchange on Which Registered

Common Stock, $0.01 par value New York Stock Exchange
Rights to Purchase Series A Preferred Stock New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) of the Act:

None
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Indicate by check mark whether the registrant: (1) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been
subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days.     Yes þ          No o

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is not contained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of registrant�s knowledge, in definitive proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-K.     o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is an accelerated filer (as defined in Exchange Act Rule 12b-2).     Yes þ          No o

Aggregate market value of the voting stock held by non-affiliates of the registrant: approximately $243.4 million as of June 30, 2003.

Indicate the number of shares outstanding of each of the registrant�s classes of common stock, as of the latest practicable date: common
stock, $.01 par value, 53,106,079 shares outstanding as of March 2, 2004.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

This Form 10-K/A is being filed to reflect the restatement of certain previously reported information as more fully described in Note 1 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements contained herein. Portions of Part II, Item 6 � �Selected Consolidated Financial Data,� Part II, Item 7 �
�Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations� and Part IV, Item 15 � �Exhibits, Financial Statement
Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K� have been amended to reflect the restatement.

As disclosed on the Form 8-K furnished to the Securities and Exchange Commission on April 29, 2004, the Company announced a
previously unutilized federal income tax refund entitlement of $1.1 million for the first fiscal quarter of 2004; this refund entitlement should
have been reflected in earlier periods, as more fully described below. As a consequence, the consolidated financial statements for 2003 and
2002, respectively, have been restated to give effect to a net operating loss carryback not previously considered by the Company in its analysis
of net deferred tax asset valuation determined during 2002.

In 2002, the Company did not give consideration to its ability to carryback net operating losses to prior periods to recover previously paid
alternative minimum taxes. The oversight was discovered during early 2004 through the performance of a tax study. The effect of the
restatement on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet was to increase deferred income taxes and decrease the accumulated deficit at both
December 31, 2002 and 2003 by $1.1 million. The effect on the consolidated statement of operations for 2002 was to decrease income tax
expense, net loss and net loss applicable to common shares by $1.1 million and decrease basic and diluted loss per common share by $0.02. The
restatement had no impact on the previously reported statement of operations for 2003. The restatement resulted in a change to the previously
announced results of operations of the Company for the three months ended March 31, 2004, reducing net earnings by $1.1 million from net
income of $0.59 million, or $0.01 per share, to a net loss of $0.56 million ($0.01 per share).

For purposes of this Form 10-K/A, and in accordance with Rule 12b-15 under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, each item
of the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003 filed on March 12, 2004, as amended by its
Form 10-K/A-1 filed on April 23, 2004, which was affected by this amendment, is hereby amended and restated in its entirety. No attempt has
been made in this Form 10-K/A to modify or update other disclosures as presented in the original Form 10-K, or Form 10-K/A-1, except as
required to reflect such amendments.
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Part II

Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data
The selected consolidated financial data set forth below with respect to our consolidated statements of operations for the years ended

December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, the seven months ended December 31, 2000 and the two fiscal years ended May 31, 2000 and 1999, and
with respect to our consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2003, 2002, 2001, and 2000 and May 31, 2000 and 1999, have been derived
from our audited consolidated financial statements. Our results of operations and financial condition have been affected by acquisitions of
businesses and significant charges during certain periods presented, which may affect the comparability of the financial information. For a
tabular presentation of significant charges, see Notes 2 and 21 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. This information should be read
in conjunction with Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and the consolidated
financial statements and the notes thereto included elsewhere in this Form 10-K.

Seven Months
Years Ended December 31, Ended Years Ended May 31,

December 31,
2003 2002 2001 2000 2000 1999

Restated Restated
(In thousands, except per share data)

Statement of Operations Data:
Net sales $150,033 $ 118,583 $212,050 $ 78,317 $121,454 $ 197,415
Cost of sales 121,133 99,624 138,415 58,982 108,169 204,998
Amortization of intangibles 1,059 1,394 1,063 600 1,160 1,418

Gross profit (loss) 27,841 17,565 72,572 18,735 12,125 (9,001)

Operating expenses:
Research and development 18,696 28,756 29,442 16,051 28,625 42,782
Marketing and sales 12,566 11,218 11,657 5,506 8,757 13,010
General and administrative 16,753 19,760 19,695 8,127 21,885 74,132
Amortization of goodwill � � 3,873 2,157 6,732 8,529
Impairment of long-lived assets 1,120 6,274 � � � 14,500
Goodwill impairment � 15,122 � � 31,596 �

Total operating expenses 49,135 81,130 64,667 31,841 97,595 152,953

Earnings (loss) from operations (21,294) (63,565) 7,905 (13,106) (85,470) (161,954)
Interest expense (4,087) (3,124) (695) (627) (826) (897)
Interest income 1,903 2,280 4,685 4,583 4,930 7,981
Fair value adjustment and exchange of
warrant obligation 1,757 3,252 � � � �
Impairment of investment (2,059) � � � � �
Other income (expense) 976 (798) 574 176 1,306 (370)

Earnings (loss) before income taxes (22,804) (61,955) 12,469 (8,974) (80,060) (155,240)
Income tax expense (benefit) 348 56,770 3,128 1,332 (6,097) (49,677)

Net earnings (loss) (23,152) (118,725) 9,341 (10,306) (73,963) (105,563)
Preferred dividend � 947 5,632 3,051 4,557 �

Net earnings (loss) applicable to common
shares $ (23,152) $(119,672) $ 3,709 $ (13,357) $ (78,520) $(105,563)
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Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07 $ (0.26) $ (1.55) $ (2.17)
Weighted average number of common
shares outstanding 51,237 51,015 51,166 50,840 50,716 48,540

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07 $ (0.26) $ (1.55) $ (2.17)
Weighted average number of diluted
common shares outstanding 51,237 51,015 52,309 50,840 50,716 48,540

Balance Sheet Data (end of year):
Working capital $133,467 $ 114,940 $204,600 $181,366 $183,412 $ 213,612
Total assets 249,204 249,594 387,335 365,633 381,769 451,748
Notes payable and current maturities of
long-term debt 2,687 2,142 2,312 1,207 1,154 1,067
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 78,516 51,430 20,088 7,077 7,886 8,947
Stockholders� equity 133,764 152,486 331,037 325,403 335,015 396,974
Other Data:
Capital expenditures $ 4,587 $ 8,230 $ 9,202 $ 2,837 $ 3,077 $ 9,326
Depreciation and amortization 11,444 13,237 17,535 11,448 22,835 20,776
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Item 7. Management�s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations
Overview

Our traditional business segments have involved the manufacture and sale of land, marine and transition zone seismic instrumentation for
oil and gas exploration and production. In recent years, we have changed our overall focus toward being a provider of seismic acquisition
imaging technology for exploration, production and reservoir monitoring in land and marine, including shallow water and marsh, environments.
The relatively low level of traditional seismic activity has presented for the past number of years, and continues to present, a challenging
environment for companies involved in the seismic industry. This environment, along with product life cycle developments affecting our
traditional product lines, has been the principal factor affecting our results of operations in recent years.

However, positive trends for our business include:

� The increasing worldwide demand for hydrocarbons,

� The increasing use of seismic products by oil companies to enhance production from their existing reserves,

� The increasing needs of exploration and production companies for seismic surveys that are custom-designed to meet particular geological
formation characteristics, and

� The increasing need for more sophisticated information tools to monitor and assess new and producing oil and gas reservoirs.

Our strategy involves repositioning our company as a seismic imaging company, providing both equipment and services across a broader
spectrum of the seismic technology industry than merely an equipment manufacture and sales company. The advantages of our products and
services that incorporate full-wave digital imaging capabilities will, we believe, ultimately drive the demand for new survey designs and the
associated processing and interpretive skills that we possess. We believe that our products that digitally monitor seismic characteristics of
reservoirs will reduce the costs of performing multiple seismic surveys over the same areas, thereby reducing overall seismic costs for operators
and owners of the reserves.

However, executing our strategic plan is not without risk. See �� Risk Factors� below. Industry fundamentals, while improving, remain weak
by historical standards. In December 2003, we successfully refinanced substantially all of our existing short-term indebtedness with the proceeds
from our convertible debt offering. See �� Recent Developments� below. As of December 31, 2003, our total outstanding indebtedness was
$81.2 million, compared to $53.6 million outstanding at December 31, 2002.

Our cash needs are anticipated to increase in 2004. We have typically financed our operations from internally generated cash and funds
from equity and debt financings. With our higher debt burden, our interest expense is expected to increase in 2004 compared to 2003. We will
continue to need funds to complete the research, development and testing of our products and services. During 2003, net cash from operations
was negative $33.1 million.

Our ability to produce positive operating cash flows, return to consistent profitability, grow our business and service and retire our debt (in
addition to our other obligations) will depend on the success of our efforts in increasing our revenues from sales of our seismic imaging systems
and equipment and our processing services, successfully introducing and continuing to technologically enhance our product line and service
offerings, penetrating new markets for our seismic products and services, achieving more consistency in our period-to-period results of
operations, improving the margins on our sales and reducing our overall costs.

We have traditionally relied on a relatively small number of significant customers; consequently, our business is exposed to risks related to
customer concentration. See Item 1. � �Business.� In recent years, our traditional customers have been rapidly consolidating, shrinking the demand
for our products. The loss of any of our significant customers or deterioration in our relations with any of them could materially and adversely
affect our results of operations and financial condition. The fact that such a high percentage of our sales currently are made to foreign
destinations and customers presents additional issues for our revenues and cash flows. We continue to see expansion from Chinese and Eastern
European seismic contractors, and we plan to expand our presence internationally. As a result of these factors, the collections cycle for our sales
in 2004 may be longer than it has traditionally been which would thereby increase our working capital funding needs.
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While we anticipate an increase in worldwide seismic activity in 2004, this anticipated increase may not materialize. As a result, our internal
revenue forecast may not be realized, resulting in lower cash flows available for our future capital and operational needs. In order to meet our
future capital requirements, we may need to issue additional debt or equity securities. We cannot assure you that we would be able to issue
additional equity or debt securities in the future on terms that would be acceptable to us, or at all.

Through our manufacturing outsourcing activities, we have sought to reduce both the unit cost of our products and our fixed cost structure,
as well as to accelerate our research and development cycle for non-core technologies. We expect additional reductions in our fixed and
semi-variable costs resulting from our cost restructuring program and facility closures. For example, in July 2003, we closed our Alvin, Texas
manufacturing facility. Additionally, we closed our Norwich, U.K. geophone stringing operation in the first quarter of 2003, and moved its
operations to our leased facility in Dubai, as well as outsourced other manufacturing activities to various partners. Effective January 2004, we
consolidated three operating units of our Land Imaging segment into one division. We will continue to work to reduce the unit costs of our
products.

We have experienced significant charges in recent years as a result of depressed industry conditions and our cost restructuring program.
While we do not anticipate any significant future charges or adjustments to our restructuring accrual accounts, future acquisitions and the fact
that technology product lines feature more rapid obsolescence present additional risks of future goodwill write-offs or write-downs and future
charges related to impairment of long-lived assets, assets held for sale and intangible assets.

We have anticipated using substantially all of the remaining proceeds from our convertible notes offering to fund acquisitions, as part of our
acquisition strategy. See �� Recent Developments� below. To the extent we make any future acquisitions, particularly funded with cash, it is likely
that we will require new sources of funding, including issuing additional debt or equity, to finance the acquisitions. Additional debt (except for
refinancings) would increase our leverage, and the issuance of additional equity could dilute the holdings of our existing shareholders. There can
be no assurances that any additional sources of funding for acquisitions will be available to us, or if available, would be available on acceptable
terms.

Recent Developments

In December 2003, we issued $60.0 million of convertible unsecured notes, which mature in December 2008 and bear interest at an annual
rate of 5.5%, payable semi-annually. The notes, which are not redeemable prior to their maturity, are convertible into our common stock at an
initial conversion rate of 231.4815 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (a conversion price of $4.32 per share), which represents
13,888,888 total common shares. A portion of the proceeds from this offering was used to repay in full $16.0 million of outstanding
indebtedness under a $31.0 million unsecured promissory note due May 7, 2004 (the SCF Note). The SCF Note bore interest at 13% and was to
mature in May 2004.

In February 2004, we purchased all of the share capital of Concept, a provider of software, systems and services for towed streamer, seabed
and land seismic operations based in Edinburgh, Scotland, in a privately negotiated transaction. The purchase price was approximately
US$36 million cash and 1,680,000 shares of our common stock. The source of the cash component of the consideration paid was from the
December 2003 sale of our convertible senior notes and general corporate funds. Under a registration rights agreement, we granted certain
demand and piggyback registration rights to holders of the shares of stock issued in the acquisition transaction.

Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2002
Net Sales: Net sales of $150.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased $31.5 million, or 27%, compared to the

corresponding period last year. Land Imaging�s net sales increased $45.5 million, or 72%, to $108.5 million compared to $63.0 million in the
corresponding period of last year. The increase was due to an increase in land seismic activity with our non-Western contractors, primarily in
China and the CIS. Marine Imaging�s net sales decreased $17.7 million, or 33%, to $35.7 million compared to $53.4 million in the corresponding
period last year. The decrease was due to continued overcapacity and reduction in capital spending in the marine contractor market. In 2003, we
formed a new reporting segment, Processing, from our acquisition of AXIS in July 2002. Processing�s net sales for the twelve months ended
December 31, 2003 were $5.8 million compared to $2.2 million recorded from the date of acquisition in July 2002 to the end of 2002.
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Cost of Sales: Cost of sales of $121.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased $21.5 million, or 22%, compared to the
corresponding period last year. Cost of sales for Land Imaging, Marine Imaging and Processing were $93.4 million, $25.0 million and
$2.7 million, respectively. Cost of sales increased primarily as a result of the increase in sales activity in Land Imaging. In addition, a charge of
$2.5 million was included in cost of sales related to the write-down of rental equipment associated with our first-generation radio-based
VectorSeis land acquisition systems to its net realizable value. Included in cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2003 is $0.7 million of
severance costs compared to $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. Cost of sales was also negatively affected by $1.0 million and
$4.3 million of inventory-related charges for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Percentage: Gross profit of $27.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased $10.3 million, or
59%, compared to the corresponding period last year. Gross profit percentage for the year ended December 31, 2003 was 19% compared to 15%
for the year ended December 31, 2002. The improvement in gross profit was driven mainly by volume improvements as well sales of our
higher-margin VectorSeis System Four land acquisition system which was commercialized in early 2003. Our gross profit percentage for the
year ended December 31, 2003 was negatively impacted in part due to a charge of $2.5 million related to the write-down of rental equipment
associated with our first generation radio-based VectorSeis land acquisition systems to its net realizable value, and inventory-related charges of
$1.0 million. Inventory related charges for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $4.3 million.

Research and Development: Research and development expense of $18.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased
$10.1 million, or 35%, compared to the corresponding period last year. This decrease primarily reflects reduced staffing levels, the cancellation
of our marine solid streamer project, the entrance into the commercial phase of our VectorSeis System Four land acquisition system and a
reduction of rent expense (primarily associated with our vacated Austin, Texas software development facility). For the year ended December 31,
2002, we incurred charges of $1.3 million relating to the closure of this facility. Included in research and development expenses for the year
ended December 31, 2003 is $0.4 million of severance costs compared to $0.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002. For the year ended
December 31, 2003, we incurred $0.2 million of expenses related to the cancellation of our solid streamer project within the Marine Imaging
segment.

Marketing and Sales: Marketing and sales expense of $12.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 increased $1.3 million, or 12%,
compared to the corresponding period last year. The increase was primarily related to higher sales and commissions on sales and due to the
opening of our sales representative office in Beijing, China. We expect marketing and sales expenses to increase further in 2004, in part due to
expenses related to our new Moscow, Russia sales representative office.

General and Administrative: General and administrative expense of $16.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased
$3.0 million, or 15%, compared to the corresponding period last year. The decrease in general and administrative expense was primarily
attributable to reductions in personnel resulting from our 2002 and 2003 staff reduction activities and a reduction in bad debt expense due to
collections of previously reserved notes receivable of $0.5 million. This decrease was partially offset by $0.4 million of moving costs associated
with vacating our Alvin, Texas facility as well as the inclusion of AXIS, which we acquired in July 2002. Included in general and administrative
expenses are severance costs of $0.2 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: Impairment of long-lived assets of $1.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 relates to the
cancellation of our solid streamer project within Marine Imaging in the first quarter of 2003. Impairment of long-lived assets of $6.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2002 primarily relates to the impairment of our Alvin, Texas manufacturing facility, the impairment of the
leasehold improvements of our Norwich, U.K. geophone stringing facility and certain related manufacturing equipment of both facilities. These
impairment charges were triggered by the announced closure of the facilities.

Goodwill Impairment: Goodwill impairment of $15.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 relates to the impairment of goodwill
of our analog land products reporting unit. There was no corresponding charge during the year ended December 31, 2003. See further discussion
at Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Net Interest and Other Income (Expense): Total net interest and other income (expense) of $(1.2) million for the year ended December 31,
2003 decreased $0.4 million compared to the corresponding
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period last year. Interest expense increased primarily due to the issuance of the $31.0 million SCF Note in August 2002, which in May 2003 we
repaid $15.0 million in principal. In December 2003, a portion of the proceeds from the issuance of our convertible senior notes was used to
repay in full the $16.0 million remaining SCF debt. Interest income decreased due to a decline in our cash balances and short-term interest rates,
partially offset by an increase in our notes receivables. The increase in other income was primarily due to fluctuations in exchange rates and a
gain on sale of assets primarily resulting from the auction of equipment related to our vacated Alvin manufacturing facility.

Fair Value Adjustment and Exchange of Warrant Obligation: The fair value adjustment and exchange of our warrant obligation totaling
$1.8 million was due to a change in the fair value between January 1, 2003 and December 10, 2003 of our common stock warrant. On
December 10, 2003, we exchanged the warrant for 125,000 shares of our common stock, which we issued to SCF. A fair value adjustment of
$3.3 million was recorded for the year ended December 31, 2002.

Impairment of Investment: Impairment of investment of $2.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 relates to the write-down of our
investment in Energy Virtual Partners (EVP) to its approximate final liquidation value of $1.0 million. See discussion at Note 5 of Notes to
Consolidated Financial Statements.

Income Tax Expense: Income tax expense of $0.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003 decreased $56.4 million compared to the
corresponding period last year. Income tax expense for the year ended December 31, 2003 reflects $1.5 million of state and foreign taxes as we
continue to maintain a valuation allowance for our net deferred tax assets (except for prior alternative minimum tax payments that are
recoverable through the carryback of net operating losses), partially offset by federal tax refunds of $1.2 million. In the second quarter of 2002,
we began to reserve for substantially all of our net deferred tax assets, which resulted in a net charge to income tax expense of $58.8 million
during that period.

Preferred Stock Dividend: Preferred stock dividend of $0.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 is related to our previously
outstanding Series B and Series C Preferred Stock. We repurchased the preferred stock on August 6, 2002 and, as a result, there were no
preferred stock dividends for the year ended December 31, 2003. The preferred stock dividend for the year ended December 31, 2002 includes a
preferred stock dividend credit of $2.5 million, which represents the difference between the fair value of the consideration granted to the holder
and our carrying value of the preferred stock at the time of the repurchase.

Year Ended December 31, 2002 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2001
Net Sales: Net sales of $118.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased $93.5 million, or 44%, compared to the

corresponding period last year. Land Imaging�s net sales decreased $99.2 million, or 61%, to $63.0 million, primarily as a result of declining
industry conditions and a loss of market share to our principal competitor. Marine Imaging�s net sales increased $3.5 million or 7%, to
$53.4 million, compared to the prior year, primarily due to an increase in demand from Russian contractors. Processing�s net sales of $2.2 million
resulted from our acquisition of AXIS in July 2002.

Cost of Sales: Cost of sales of $99.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased $38.8 million, or 28%, compared to the
corresponding period last year. Costs of sales of Land Imaging, Marine Imaging and Processing were $65.0 million, $33.8 million and
$0.8 million, respectively. The decrease was a result of reduced sales activity in Land Imaging, partially offset by lower gross profit on those
revenues. Included in cost of sales for the year ended December 31, 2002 were $1.9 million of severance costs, for which there were no
corresponding costs for the year ended December 31, 2001. Cost of sales was negatively affected by $4.3 million and $3.6 million of
inventory-related charges for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Percentage: Gross profit of $17.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased $55.0 million, or
76%, compared to the corresponding period last year. Gross profit percentage for the year ended December 31, 2002 was 15% compared to 34%
in the prior year. The decline in gross profit percentage was primarily due to under-absorbed manufacturing overhead, inventory-related charges
of $4.3 million, and to a lesser degree, severance for work force reductions totaling $1.9 million.

Research and Development: Research and development expense of $28.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased
$0.7 million, or 2%, compared to the corresponding period last year. Research and development expense remained at relatively high levels as we
completed the final stages of VectorSeis commercialization and continued to develop a solid marine streamer, a lightweight ground electronics
system and an ocean bottom system that would exploit our VectorSeis technology. Also, research and development
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expenses included severance expenses of $0.8 million and charges related to the closure of our Austin, Texas facility of $1.3 million.

Marketing and Sales: Marketing and sales expense of $11.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 decreased $0.4 million, or 4%,
compared to the corresponding period last year. The decrease is primarily related to lower payroll costs and commissions on sales, partially
offset by severance for work force reductions of $0.3 million.

General and Administrative: General and administrative expense of $19.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased
$0.1 million compared to the corresponding period last year. The increase in general and administrative expense was primarily due to
$0.6 million of abandoned lease costs associated with our Louisville, Colorado facility and an increase in bad debt expense (net of recoveries) of
$0.5 million, partially offset by decreases in payroll, profit-based bonuses and facility related costs.

Amortization of Goodwill: Amortization of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2001 was $3.9 million. There was no amortization of
goodwill in 2002 due to the implementation of SFAS No. 142 �Goodwill and Other Intangibles Assets�, which, among other things, eliminated the
amortization of goodwill.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets: Impairment of long-lived assets of $6.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 primarily related
to the impairment of our Alvin, Texas manufacturing facility, the leasehold improvements of our Norwich, U.K. geophone stringing facility and
certain related manufacturing equipment of both facilities. The impairments were triggered by the announced closures of facilities. There was no
corresponding charge during the year ended December 31, 2001.

Goodwill Impairment: Goodwill impairment of $15.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 related to the impairment of goodwill
of our analog land products reporting unit. There was no corresponding charge during the year ended December 31, 2001.

Net Interest and Other Income (Expense): Total net interest and other income (expense) of $(1.6) million for the year ended December 31,
2002 decreased $6.2 million compared to the corresponding period last year. The decrease is primarily due to falling interest rates on cash
balances, as well as increased interest expense on new debt, compared to the prior year.

Fair Value Adjustment of Warrant Obligation: The fair value adjustment of our warrant obligation totaling $3.3 million was due to a change
in the fair value of the SCF Warrant between August 6, 2002 (the issuance date) and December 31, 2002.

Income Tax Expense: Income tax expense of $56.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 increased $53.6 million compared to the
year ended December 31, 2001 due to a charge of $58.8 million in 2002 to establish an additional valuation allowance for our net deferred tax
assets. In the second quarter of 2002, we began to reserve for substantially all of our net deferred tax assets.

Preferred Stock Dividends: Preferred stock dividends for the years ended December 31, 2002 and 2001 were related to previously
outstanding Series B and Series C Preferred Stock. The preferred stock dividend charge for the year ended December 31, 2002 was $0.9 million,
compared to $5.6 million for the year ended December 31, 2001. We repurchased the preferred stock on August 6, 2002. The decrease in
preferred stock dividends was due to a preferred stock dividend credit of approximately $2.5 million, which represented the difference in the fair
value of the consideration granted to the holders of the preferred stock and our carrying value of the preferred stock at the time of the repurchase,
and less than a full year of dividends in 2002.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

In December 2003, we issued $60.0 million of 5.5% senior convertible notes due in 2008. A portion of the proceeds were used to pay in full
the $16.0 million remaining outstanding debt under the SCF Note. We have anticipated using substantially all of the remaining proceeds from
this offering to fund acquisitions. See �� Recent Developments� above. We are significantly more leveraged after the consummation of the offering.
As a result, our interest expense is expected to increase for 2004 and the foreseeable future. Our ability to make scheduled payments of principal
or interest on, or to refinance, our indebtedness depends on our future business performance, which is subject to many economic, financial,
competitive and other factors beyond our control.

We may seek a revolving line of credit to support our working capital requirements. Whether we will enter into such a credit arrangement
will depend on the terms available to us from lenders. We can give no
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assurances as to whether such a line of credit will be arranged, and, if so, whether the terms will be advantageous to us or whether the amounts
available for borrowing will be sufficient for our purposes.

Based upon our management�s internal revenue forecast, our liquidity requirements in the near term and our projected increase in seismic
activity primarily outside of North America, we currently believe that the combination of our projected internally-generated cash and our
working capital (including cash and cash equivalents on hand) will be adequate to meet our anticipated capital and liquidity requirements for the
next twelve months. We also anticipate that a larger percentage of our future sales in 2004 and beyond will be to foreign customers, particularly
those in China and the CIS. As a result of this change in customer mix, our collections cycle may be longer than we have traditionally
experienced.

We anticipate an increase in worldwide seismic activity in 2004. However, this anticipated increase may not materialize. As a result, our
internal revenue forecast may not be realized, resulting in lower cash flows available for our future capital needs. In order to meet these future
capital requirements, we may need to issue additional debt or equity securities. We cannot assure you that we would be able to issue additional
equity or debt securities in the future on terms that would be acceptable to us, or at all.

Cash Flow from Operations
We have traditionally financed operations from internally generated cash and funds from equity and debt financings. Cash and cash

equivalents were $59.5 million at December 31, 2003, a decrease of $16.7 million, or 22%, compared to December 31, 2002. Net cash used in
operating activities was $33.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to cash provided by operating activities of $13.7 million
for the year ended December 31, 2002. The net cash used in operating activities for 2003 was due in part to the loss from operations for the year.
Also contributing to the net cash used during the period were an increase in accounts and notes receivable, as well as an increase in inventory
related to increased activity in Land Imaging. We also took advantage of our cash position to reduce our accounts payable level. The increase in
our accounts receivable was primarily due to a continued shift in our sales to foreign customers, which historically have been slower to pay.

Cash and cash equivalents were $76.2 million at December 31, 2002, a decrease of $25.1 million, or 25%, compared to December 31, 2001.
Net cash provided by operating activities was $13.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, compared to $17.6 million for the year ended
December 31, 2001. This decrease in cash flow provided from operations was generally a result of lower operating levels in 2002 with smaller
gross margins.

Cash Flow from Investing Activities
Net cash flow used in investing activities was $7.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, which represented a decrease of

$3.3 million compared to the year ended December 31, 2002. The principal investing activities were $4.6 million relating to capital expenditure
projects, $3.0 million related to the investment in EVP in April 2003 and $1.3 million of additional consideration paid to the former shareholders
of AXIS to settle all future contingent purchase price obligations. As further discussed in Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements,
in the fourth quarter of 2003 we received $0.9 million from the liquidation of EVP. Planned capital expenditures for 2004 are approximately
$5.8 million.

Net cash flow used in investing activities was $10.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002; a decrease of $3.9 million compared to
the year ended December 31, 2001. Our principal investing activities in 2002 were $8.2 million relating to capital expenditure projects and
$2.7 million, net of cash acquired, relating to our acquisitions of AXIS and S/ N Technologies.

Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Cash flow provided by financing activities was $21.2 million for the year ended December 31, 2003; an increase of $52.5 million compared

to the use of cash for the year ended December 31, 2002. In December 2003, we issued $60.0 million of convertible senior notes which mature
in December 2008. As part of this issuance we incurred approximately $3.5 million of underwriting and professional fees, which were recorded
as deferred financing costs and are being amortized over the 5-year term. A portion of the proceeds from this issuance was used to repay in full
the $16.0 million in outstanding debt under the SCF Note. In May 2003, we had repaid $15.0 million of outstanding debt under the SCF Note. In
addition, we paid $3.2 million related to other debt obligations.
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Cash flow used in financing activities was $31.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, representing a decrease of $38.9 million
compared to the year ended December 31, 2001. The principal use of cash was $30.0 million relating to the repurchase of preferred stock and
$2.6 million for the repayment of long-term debt, partially offset by proceeds of $0.8 million from the issuance of common stock under our
employee stock purchase plan and $1.0 million from the exercise of stock options.

Acquisition Indebtedness
In July 2002, in connection with our acquisition of AXIS, we issued a $2.5 million three-year unsecured promissory note payable to the

former shareholders of AXIS, bearing interest at 4.34% per year. Principal is payable in quarterly installments of $0.2 million, plus interest, with
the final payment due in July 2005. The unpaid balance as of December 31, 2003 was $1.5 million.

In January 2001, in connection with our acquisition of all of the outstanding capital stock of Pelton Company, we issued a $3.0 million
two-year unsecured promissory note payable to the former shareholder of Pelton, bearing interest at 8.5% per year. Principal was payable in
quarterly payments of $0.4 million plus interest. The final payment on this note was made in February 2003.

Sale and Lease of Stafford Facilities
In August 2001, we sold the land and buildings that house our corporate headquarters, our land imaging division and our MEMS facility in

Stafford, Texas for $21.0 million cash, and repaid the outstanding mortgage loan secured by that property. At the same time, we entered into a
non-cancelable lease with the purchaser of the property. This lease has a 12-year term with three consecutive options to extend the lease for five
years each. We have no purchase option under this lease. As a result of the terms of the lease, the commitment was recorded as a twelve-year
$21.0 million lease obligation with an implicit annual interest rate of 9.1%. We paid $1.7 million in commissions and professional fees, which
were recorded as deferred financing costs and are being amortized over the 12-year term of the obligation. The unpaid balance of the lease
payments as of December 31, 2003 was $18.8 million.

The carrying value of the land and buildings are included as assets, and the value of the related lease obligations are included as liabilities,
on our consolidated balance sheet under U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. As of December 31, 2003, the net carrying value of the
facilities on our consolidated balance sheet was approximately $12.6 million.

The lease agreement contains financial covenants requiring us to maintain certain current ratios and tangible net worth during the first five
years of the lease term. These financial covenants provide that if we fail to meet certain current ratio or tangible net worth requirements for any
four consecutive quarters, we would have to provide a letter of credit to the landlord in the amount of $1.5 million. At June 30, 2003, we failed
to meet the tangible net worth requirement for four consecutive quarters, and as a result, we provided a letter of credit to the landlord in the
amount of $1.5 million during the third quarter of 2003. To secure the issuance of the letter of credit, we were required to deposit $1.5 million
with the issuing bank. This letter of credit will remain outstanding until we achieve and maintain compliance with the tangible net worth
requirements for eight consecutive quarters, or until the expiration of the eighth year of the lease, which is in 2009. We were not in compliance
with the tangible net worth requirement at December 31, 2003.

Future Contractual Obligations

The following table sets forth estimates of future payments for 2004 through 2009, and thereafter, of our consolidated contractual
obligations as of December 31, 2003 (in thousands):

Payments Due by Fiscal Year

2009 and
Contractual Obligations Total 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Thereafter

Long-Term Debt and Lease Obligations $ 81,203 $ 2,687 $1,840 $1,470 $1,610 $61,763 $11,833
Operating Leases 5,120 2,453 806 559 374 928 �
Product Warranty 3,433 3,433 � � � � �
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Purchase Obligations 19,812 19,422 390 � � � �

Total $109,568 $27,995 $3,036 $2,029 $1,984 $62,691 $11,833
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The debt and lease obligations at December 31, 2003 consist primarily of $60.0 million in convertible senior notes that mature in December
2008. The remaining amount of these obligations consist of $1.5 million in unsecured promissory notes related to our acquisition of AXIS in
2002, $0.9 million of insurance costs we financed through short-term notes payable, and $18.8 million related to the lease arrangement housing
our corporate headquarters, our Land Imaging division and MEMS facility in Stafford, Texas. For further discussion of our notes payable,
long-term debt and lease obligations, see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

The operating lease commitments at December 31, 2003 relate to our lease of certain equipment, offices and warehouse space under
non-cancelable operating leases.

The liability for product warranties at December 31, 2003 relates to the estimated future warranty expenditures associated with our
products. Our warranty periods range from 90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the product. We record an
accrual for product warranties and other contingencies when estimated future expenditures associated with those contingencies become probable
and the amounts can be reasonably estimated.

Our purchase obligations primarily relate to our committed inventory purchase orders for which deliveries are scheduled to be made in
2004. Included in this amount is a minimum payment commitment of labor hours to the outsource provider for the manufacturing of our vibrator
vehicles, which extends through 2005 and approximates $0.4 million in each of the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2005.

As part of our business plan, we are increasing the use of contract manufacturers as an alternative to in-house manufacturing. Under a few
of our outsourcing arrangements, our manufacturing outsourcers first utilize our on-hand inventory, then directly purchase inventory at
agreed-upon quantities and lead times in order to meet our scheduled deliveries. If demand proves to be less than we originally forecasted
(thereby allowing us to cancel our committed purchase orders with our outsourcer), our manufacturing outsourcer has the right to require us to
purchase inventory which it had purchased on our behalf. However, since we now issue purchase orders to our outsourcers based upon our
short-term forecast (usually three months or less), we believe we have reduced the risk that we may be required to purchase any substantial
quantities of inventory that we may never utilize.

Significant 2002 and 2003 Charges

In 2002, we recorded significant charges in connection with our restructuring program. The related reserves reflected many estimates,
including those pertaining to severance costs of $3.4 million, facility related charges (primarily future, non-cancelable lease obligations) of
$1.9 million and inventory-related charges of $4.3 million. In addition, during 2002, we recorded charges of $15.1 million relating to the
impairment of goodwill and $6.3 million for the impairment of long-lived assets. In 2003, we recorded severance costs of $1.3 million,
inventory-related charges of $1.0 million, $1.1 million for the impairment of long-lived assets and $2.5 million related to the write-down of
rental equipment associated with our first-generation radio-based VectorSeis land acquisition systems. We will continually reassess the
requirements necessary to complete our restructuring program, which may result in additional charges being recorded in future periods.
However, we currently do not anticipate any significant future charges or adjustments to our restructuring accruals, except for $0.4 million of
additional severance expenses to be incurred in 2004 associated with the consolidation of three operating units within our Land Imaging segment
into one division. See Note 2 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2002, we recorded a net charge of $58.8 million to income tax expense to establish an additional valuation allowance for substantially all
of our net deferred tax assets. At December 31, 2003 and 2002, the unreserved deferred income tax asset of $1.1 million represents our prior
Alternative Minimum Tax payments that are recoverable through the carryback of net operating losses. In accordance with Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes,� we established an additional valuation allowance for
substantially all of our net deferred tax assets based on our cumulative operating results in the three-year period ended December 31, 2002. Our
results in this period were heavily affected by industry conditions and deliberate and planned business restructuring activities in response to the
prolonged downturn in the seismic equipment market, as well as heavy expenditures for research and development. Nevertheless, recent losses
represented sufficient negative evidence to establish an additional valuation allowance. We have continued to reserve for substantially all of our
net deferred tax assets and will continue to do so until we have sufficient evidence to warrant reversal. This valuation allowance does not affect
our ability to reduce future tax expense through utilization of net operating losses.
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See Note 21 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a tabular presentation of significant charges by segment.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States
requires management to make choices between acceptable methods of accounting and to use judgment in making estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities and the reported amounts of revenue and
expenses. The following accounting policies are based on, among other things, judgments and assumptions made by management that include
inherent risks and uncertainties. Management�s estimates are based on the relevant information available at the end of each period.

� Revenue Recognition and Product Warranty � Revenue is derived from the sale of data acquisition systems and other seismic equipment, as
well as from the processing of seismic data. For the sales of data acquisition systems, we follow the requirements of SOP 97-2 �Software
Revenue Recognition,� and recognize revenue when the system is delivered to the customer and risk of ownership has passed to the
customer, or, in the limited case where a customer acceptance clause exists in the contract, the later of delivery or when customer
acceptance is obtained. For the sales of other seismic equipment, we recognize revenue when the equipment is shipped and risk of
ownership has passed to the customer. For processing of seismic data, revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of the processed data to
the customer.

When elements such as a data acquisition system and other seismic equipment are contained in a single arrangement, or in related
arrangements with the same customer, we allocate revenue to each element based on its relative fair value, provided that such element
meets the criteria for treatment as a separate unit of accounting. The price charged when the element is sold separately generally
determines fair value. We limit the amount of revenue recognition for delivered elements to the amount that is not contingent on the
future delivery of products or services. We do not grant return or refund privileges to our customers.

We warrant that all manufactured equipment will be free from defects in workmanship, material and parts. Warranty periods range from
90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the product. At the time of sale, we record an accrual for product
warranties and other contingencies, which is when estimated future expenditures associated with such contingencies are probable and the
amounts can be reasonably estimated. However, new information may become available, or circumstances (such as applicable laws and
regulations) may change, thereby resulting in an increase or decrease in the amount required to be accrued for such matters (and therefore
a decrease or increase in reported net income in the period of such change).

� Impairment of Long-Lived Assets � We periodically evaluate the net realizable value of long-lived assets, including property, plant and
equipment, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections and anticipated future cash
flows. We recognize impairment in the carrying value of an asset whenever we estimate that anticipated future cash flows (undiscounted)
from an asset are less than its carrying value. We recognize the difference between the carrying value of the asset and its fair value as the
amount of the impairment. Since we must exercise judgment in determining the fair value of long-lived assets, the carrying value of our
long-lived assets may be either overstated or understated.

In May 2003, a strategic marketing alliance with Veritas DGC Inc. was terminated. We reassessed the net realizable value of our rental
equipment, which was being utilized in North America as part of the alliance. This equipment was associated with our first-generation
radio-based VectorSeis land acquisition systems. This equipment was an older generation of our technology, therefore the market
demand and its net realizable value was significantly less than our current generation VectorSeis land acquisition systems. As a result, we
recorded an impairment charge of $2.5 million in 2003.

In early 2003, we initiated an evaluation of our marine solid streamer project and concluded we would no longer internally pursue this
product for commercial development. In conjunction with this evaluation, certain fixed assets and patented technology were considered
impaired, resulting in a write-down of fixed assets of $0.5 million and intangible assets of $0.6 million in the first quarter of 2003.

Edgar Filing: INPUT OUTPUT INC - Form 10-K/A

16



In 2002, we announced plans to close our Alvin, Texas and Norwich, U.K. manufacturing facilities. Applicable accounting rules required
us to perform an impairment analysis as a result of the announced closures. As a result, we recorded an impairment charge of
$6.3 million in 2002. We relied upon third party quoted market prices for the facilities and internally developed operating cash flows
during the interim period prior to their closure to determine the amount of the impairment of other related assets.

� Impairment of Goodwill � On January 1, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142 �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.� Since adoption of
SFAS No. 142 we no longer amortize goodwill, but instead test for impairment at least annually and as triggering events occur. In making
this assessment we rely on a number of factors including operating results, business plans, internal and external economic projections,
anticipated future cash flows and external market data. There are inherent uncertainties related to these factors and our judgment in
applying them to the analysis of goodwill impairment. Since our judgment is involved in performing goodwill valuation analyses, the
carrying value of our goodwill may be either overstated or understated.

In the third quarter of 2002, we recorded an impairment charge of $15.1 million, which related to all the goodwill of our land analog
products reporting unit, a reporting unit within Land Imaging. The continuing weakness in the traditional analog land seismic markets
and the financial condition of many of the seismic contractors, coupled with the anticipated decrease in demand for analog products,
precipitated the need for this interim impairment. We determine the fair value of our reporting units using a discounted future returns
valuation method.

� Realization of Investments � We accounted for our investment in EVP under the cost method, where we review the investment for
impairment when we estimate that the fair value of our investment has fallen below the then-current carrying amount. When we deem the
decline to be other than temporary, we record an impairment charge for the difference between the investment�s carrying value and its
estimated fair value at the time. Since the time of our investment, EVP failed to close two anticipated asset management agreements,
which resulted in EVP�s management re-evaluating its business model and adequacy of capital. The board of directors of EVP voted to
liquidate EVP, as it was unable to present a clear and feasible business strategy. As a result, we wrote our investment in EVP down to its
approximate fair value of $1.0 million. This fair value represents our best estimate of the expected liquidation payout. In December 2003
we received a portion of our liquidation payment and expect to receive our final liquidation payment in the first quarter of 2004.

� Accounts and Notes Receivable Collectibility � We consider current information and circumstances regarding our customers� ability to repay
their obligations, and consider an account or note impaired when it is probable that we will be unable to collect all amounts due. When we
consider an account or note as impaired, we measure the amount of the impairment based on the present value of expected future cash
flows or the fair value of collateral. We include impairment losses (recoveries) in our allowance for doubtful accounts and for loan loss
through an increase (decrease) in bad debt expense. Notes receivable are collateralized by the products sold, bear interest at contractual
rates up to 12.7% per year and are due at various dates through 2006. The weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2003 for our
notes receivable was 7.4%. We first apply cash receipts on impaired notes to reduce the principal amount of such notes until the principal
has been recovered and then we recognize additional cash receipts as interest income.

� Inventory Obsolescence � We provide reserves for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the difference between the cost of
inventory and its estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand for our products and market conditions. For the
years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, we recorded inventory-related charges of approximately $1.0 million, $4.3 million and
$3.6 million, respectively.

� Deferred Tax Valuation Allowance � In 2002, we established an additional valuation allowance to reserve for substantially all of our net
deferred tax assets. In accordance with SFAS No. 109, we established an additional valuation allowance based on our cumulative operating
results in the most recent three-year period. Our results in this period were heavily affected by both industry conditions and deliberate and
planned business restructuring activities in response to the prolonged downturn in the seismic equipment market, as well as heavy
expenditures on research and development of our VectorSeis technology. Nevertheless, more recent losses represented sufficient negative
evidence to establish an additional valuation allowance. We will continue to reserve for substantially all of our net
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deferred tax assets until we have sufficient evidence to warrant reversal. This valuation allowance does not affect our ability to reduce
future tax expense through utilization of net operating losses.

� Stock-Based Compensation � We have elected to continue to follow the intrinsic value method of accounting for equity-based compensation
as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25. If we had adopted SFAS No. 123, net earnings (loss), basic earnings (loss) per share and diluted
earnings (loss) per share for the periods presented would have been reduced (increased) as follows (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Net loss applicable to common shares $(23,152) $(119,672) $ 3,709
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported earnings (loss) applicable to common
shares (222) 417 246
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value methods for all awards $ (2,463) $ (3,531) $(4,244)

Pro forma net loss $(25,837) $(122,786) $ (289)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share �
as reported $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07

Pro forma basic and diluted loss per common share $ (0.50) $ (2.41) $ (0.01)

The above amounts are based on Black-Scholes valuation model variables of an average risk free interest rate based on 5-year Treasury
bonds, an estimated option term of five years, $0 dividends and expected price volatility of 60% during the years ended December 31, 2003 and
2002 and 41% during the year ended December 31, 2001.

We believe that all of the judgments and estimates used to prepare our financial statements were reasonable at the time we made them, but
circumstances may change requiring us to revise our estimates in ways that could be materially adverse to our results of operations and financial
condition.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 143, �Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.� This
Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the
associated asset retirement costs. The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. We adopted
SFAS No. 143 on January 1, 2003 and its adoption did not have a significant impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, �Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,� which addresses financial
accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3,
�Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).� SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized when the liability is
incurred. Under EITF Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost was recognized at the date of an entity�s commitment to an exit plan. The provisions
of SFAS No. 146 are effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, and we have adopted them for 2003. For
all exit and disposal activities initiated on or before December 31, 2002, we have continued to follow EITF No. 94-3.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, �Guarantor�s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others: an Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 67, and 107 and Rescission
of FASB Interpretation No. 34.� FIN No. 45 clarifies the requirements of FASB No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies,� relating to the guarantor�s
accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of certain types of guarantees. The initial recognition and measurement provisions of FIN No. 45
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are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. Our adoption of FIN No. 45 did not have an
impact on our results of operations or financial position.
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In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation � Transition and Disclosure � and
Amendment of FASB No. 123.� SFAS No. 148 amends FASB No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,� to provide alternative methods
of transition for a voluntary change in fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition,
SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require more prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. We
have elected to continue to follow the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by Accounting Principal Board Opinion No. 25. See
Note 1 to the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, �Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51�. The primary
objective of the interpretation is to provide guidance on the identification of and financial reporting for entities over which control is achieved
through means other than voting rights; such entities are known as variable-interest entities (VIEs). FIN No. 46 provides guidance that
determines (1) whether consolidation is required under the �controlling financial interest� model of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
Consolidated Financial Statements, or other existing authoritative guidance, or, alternatively, (2) whether the variable-interest model under FIN
No. 46 should be used to account for existing and new entities. In December 2003, the FASB completed deliberations of proposed modifications
to FIN 46 (FIN 46-R) resulting in multiple effective dates based on the nature as well as creation date of the VIE. FIN No. 46, as revised, did not
have a significant impact on our results of operations or financial position.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, �Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,� which
amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. This statement is effective for contracts entered
into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. Our adoption of this statement had no initial
impact on the results of operations or financial position.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, �Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.� This statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. It requires a financial instrument within its scope to be classified as a liability. It is effective for financial instruments
entered into or modified after May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003.
These effective dates are not applicable to the provisions of paragraphs 9 and 10 of SFAS 150 as they apply to mandatorily redeemable
noncontrolling interests, as the FASB has delayed these provisions indefinitely. Our adoption of this statement had no initial impact on our
results of operations or financial position.

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, Revenue Recognition, which supercedes SAB 101, Revenue
Recognition in Financial Statements. SAB 104�s primary purpose is to rescind accounting guidance contained in SAB 101 related to multiple
element revenue arrangements, which was superceded as a result of the issuance of EITF 00-21, Accounting for Revenue Arrangements with
Multiple Deliverables. While the wording of SAB 104 has changed to reflect the issuance of EITF 00-21, the revenue recognition principles of
SAB 101 remain largely unchanged by the issuance of SAB 104. The impact of SAB 104 did not have a material effect on the Company�s results
of operations or financial position.

Credit Risk

Currently, our principal customers are seismic contractors, which operate seismic data acquisition systems and related equipment to collect
data in accordance with their customers� specifications or for their own seismic data libraries. In addition, we market and sell products and
services to oil and gas companies. In 2003, BGP accounted for approximately 28% of our consolidated net sales. In 2002, two of our largest
customers, Western-Geco and Laboratory of Regional Geo-Dynamics, Limited, were responsible for approximately 11% and 10%, respectively,
of our consolidated net sales. The loss of any one of these customers or deterioration in our relations with any of them could have a material
adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition. In recent years, our customers have been rapidly consolidating, shrinking the
demand for our products.

During the year ended December 31, 2003, we recognized $20.0 million of sales to customers in the CIS, $15.4 million of sales to
customers in Latin American countries, $20.0 million of sales to customers in Europe
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and $44.7 million of sales to customers in Asia. The majority of our foreign sales are denominated in U.S. dollars. In recent years, the CIS and
certain Latin American countries have experienced economic problems and uncertainties as well as devaluations of their currencies. A
continuation of weak demand for the services provided by certain of our customers will further strain their revenues and cash resources, thereby
resulting in a higher likelihood of defaults in the timely payment of their obligations to us under our credit sales arrangements. Increased levels
of payment defaults by our customers with respect to our credit sales arrangements could have a material adverse effect on our results of
operations. To the extent that world events or economic conditions negatively affect our future sales to customers in those and other regions of
the world or the collectibility of our existing receivables, our future results of operations, liquidity and financial condition may be adversely
affected. See �� Risk Factors � Significant payment defaults under extended financing arrangements could adversely affect us.�

SCF Note and Warrant

In August 2002, we repurchased all of the 40,000 outstanding shares of our Series B Convertible Preferred Stock and all of the 15,000
outstanding shares of our Series C Convertible Preferred Stock from SCF, a Houston-based private equity fund specializing in oil service
investments. In exchange for the preferred stock, we paid SCF $30.0 million in cash at closing, issued the SCF Note and granted SCF a warrant
to purchase 2,673,517 shares of our common stock at $8.00 per share which expired on August 5, 2005. The Note bore interest at 8% per annum
until May 7, 2003, at which time the interest rate increased to 13%. We recorded interest on this note at an effective rate of approximately
11% per year. In May 2003, we repaid $15.0 million of the note and in December 2003, we repaid, in full, the remaining outstanding
$16.0 million indebtedness. In addition, in December 2003, we terminated the warrant in exchange for 125,000 shares of our common stock with
a market value of $3.54 per share.

Under the terms of a registration rights agreement, SCF had the right to demand that we file a registration statement for the resale of the
shares of common stock SCF acquired upon exercise of the warrant. If we were acquired in a business combination pursuant to which our
stockholders receive less than 60% of the aggregate consideration in the form of publicly traded common equity, then the holder of the warrant
had the option to require the Company to acquire the warrant at its fair value as determined by the Black-Scholes valuation model, as further
refined by the terms of the warrant agreement. Because we could have been required to repurchase the warrant in these limited circumstances,
we had classified the warrant as a current liability on our consolidated balance sheet.

Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions

On March 31, 2003, we announced that we had appointed Robert P. Peebler as our president and chief executive officer. In April 2003, we
invested $3.0 million in preferred securities of Energy Virtual Partners, LP and its affiliated corporation (EVP) in exchange for 22% of the
outstanding ownership interests and 12% of the outstanding voting interests of EVP. EVP had been formed in 2001 to provide asset management
services to large oil and gas companies in order to enhance the value of their oil and gas properties. Mr. Peebler had founded EVP and had
served as its president and chief executive officer until his joining us in March 2003. Mr. Peebler continued to serve as the Chairman of EVP and
held a 23% ownership interest in EVP. Under Mr. Peebler�s employment agreement with us, he was permitted to devote up to 20% of his time to
EVP.

During the second quarter of 2003, EVP failed to close two anticipated asset management agreements, which resulted in EVP�s management
re-evaluating its business model and adequacy of capital. During August 2003, the board of directors of EVP voted to liquidate the company.
For that reason, we wrote our investment in EVP down to its approximate liquidation value of $1.0 million, resulting in a charge against earnings
in 2003 of $2.1 million. In December 2003, we received a portion of our final liquidation payment of $0.7 million and expect to receive our final
liquidation payment of $0.1 million in the first quarter of 2004. Mr. Peebler offered, and we agreed, that all proceeds Mr. Peebler receives from
the liquidation of EVP will be paid by him to us. In December 2003, we received $0.1 million from Mr. Peebler, and this amount has been
included in our estimate of our liquidation value in EVP. See Item 11. � �Executive Compensation � Compensation Committee Interlocks and
Insider Participation,� of our Form 10-K/A-1 for the year ended December 31, 2003.

James M. Lapeyre, Jr. is the chairman and a significant equity owner of Laitram, L.L.C. (Laitram) and has served as president of Laitram
and its predecessors since 1989. Laitram is a privately owned, New
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Orleans-based manufacturer of food processing equipment and modular conveyor belts. Mr. Lapeyre and Laitram together owned 15.2% of our
outstanding common stock as of December 31, 2003.

We acquired DigiCourse, Inc., our marine positioning products business, from Laitram in 1998 and have renamed it I/O Marine
Systems, Inc. In connection with that acquisition, we entered into a Continued Services Agreement with Laitram under which Laitram agreed to
provide us certain accounting, software, manufacturing and maintenance services. These manufacturing services consist primarily of machining
of parts for our marine positioning systems. The term of this agreement expired in September 2001, but we continue to operate under its terms.
In addition, when we request, the legal staff of Laitram advises us on certain intellectual property matters with regard to our marine positioning
systems. During 2003, we paid Laitram a total of $1.2 million, which consisted of $0.6 million of manufacturing services and $0.6 million of
rent and other facilities charges. In the opinion of our management, the terms of these services are fair and reasonable and as favorable to us as
those that could have been obtained from unrelated third parties at the time of their performance.

In March 2000, our board of directors established an executive �matching� program under which we issued one share of restricted stock for
each share purchased by our senior executives in open-market transactions in March and April of 2000. In connection with this program, we
issued 33,000 shares of restricted stock to C. Robert Bunch, a former executive officer of I/O. Mr. Bunch funded his purchase through a loan
from a commercial bank in the amount of $200,000. We guaranteed this indebtedness in 2000 and would have been liable for the entire amount
outstanding under this loan if Mr. Bunch had defaulted on his obligation under the loan. Our guarantee of Mr. Bunch�s indebtedness expired by
its terms in March 2003. Mr. Bunch left our employment in May 2003.

Risk Factors

This report contains statements concerning our future results and performance and other matters that are �forward-looking� statements within
the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the Exchange Act).
These statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties, and other factors that may cause our or our industry�s results, levels of
activity, performance, or achievements to be materially different from any future results, levels of activity, performance, or achievements
expressed or implied by such forward-looking statements. In some cases, you can identify forward-looking statements by terminology such as
�may,� �will,� �should,� �intend,� �expect,� �plan,� �anticipate,� �believe,� �estimate,� �predict,� �potential,� or �continue� or the negative of such terms or other
comparable terminology.

Examples of other forward-looking statements contained in this report include statements regarding:

� our expected revenues, operating profit and net income;

� future growth rates and margins for certain of our products and services;

� the adequacy of our future liquidity and capital resources;

� anticipated timing and success of commercialization and capabilities of products and services under development;

� our plans for facility closures and other future business reorganizations;

� charges we expect to take for future reorganization activities;

� savings we expect to achieve from our restructuring activities;

� future demand for seismic equipment and services;

� future seismic industry fundamentals;

� future oil and gas commodity prices;

� future worldwide economic conditions;
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� our expectations regarding future mix of business and future asset recoveries;

� our expectations regarding realization of deferred tax assets;

� our beliefs regarding accounting estimates we make;
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� the result of pending or threatened disputes and other contingencies;

� our future acquisitions and levels of capital expenditures; and

� our proposed strategic alliances.

These forward-looking statements reflect our best judgment about future events and trends based on the information currently available to
us. Our results of operations can be affected by inaccurate assumptions we make or by risks and uncertainties known or unknown to us.
Therefore, we cannot guarantee the accuracy of the forward-looking statements. Actual events and results of operations may vary materially
from our current expectations and assumptions. While we cannot identify all of the factors that may cause actual results to vary from our
expectations, we believe the following factors should be considered carefully:

We may not gain rapid market acceptance for our VectorSeis products, which could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.
We have spent considerable time and capital developing our VectorSeis product lines. Because VectorSeis products rely on a new digital

sensor, our ability to sell our VectorSeis products will depend on acceptance of our digital sensor and technology solutions by geophysical
contractors and exploration and production companies. If our customers do not believe that our digital sensor delivers higher quality data with
greater operational efficiency, our results of operations and financial condition will be materially and adversely affected.

System reliability is an important competitive consideration for seismic data acquisition systems. Even though we attempt to assure that our
systems are always reliable in the field, the many technical variables related to operations can cause a combination of factors that can and have,
from time to time, caused service issues with our analog products. If our customers believe that our analog products have reliability issues, then
those customers may delay acceptance of our new products and reduce demand for our analog products. Our business, our results of operations
and our financial condition, therefore, may be materially and adversely affected.

While we believe that our new VectorSeis System Four land data acquisition system has made significant improvements in both field
troubleshooting and reliability compared to our legacy systems, products as complex as this system, however, sometimes contain undetected
errors or bugs when first introduced. Despite our testing program, these undetected errors are not discovered until the product is purchased and
used by a customer. If our customers deploy our new products and they do not work correctly, our relationship with our customers may be
materially and adversely affected. Errors may be found in future releases of our products, and these errors could impair the market acceptance of
our products. If our customers do not accept our new products as rapidly as we anticipate, our business, our results of operations and our
financial condition may be materially and adversely affected.

The loss of any significant customer could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.
We rely on a relatively small number of significant customers. Consequently, our business is exposed to the risks related to customer

concentration. In 2003, BGP, an international seismic contractor and subsidiary of the China National Petroleum Corporation (BGP), accounted
for approximately 28% of our consolidated net sales. In 2002, two of our largest customers, Western-Geco and Laboratory of Regional
Geo-Dynamics Limited, were responsible for approximately 11% and 10%, respectively, of our consolidated net sales. The loss of any of our
significant customers or a deterioration in our relations with any of them could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

Our business reorganization and facilities closure plans may not yield the benefits we expect and could harm our financial condition,
reputation and prospects.
We have significantly reduced our corporate and operational headcount, closed certain manufacturing facilities and combined certain of our

business units. These activities may not yield the benefits we expect, and may raise product costs, delay product production, result in or
exacerbate labor disruptions and labor-related legal actions against us and create inefficiencies in our business. In addition, if the markets for our
products do not improve, we will take additional restructuring actions to address these market conditions. Any such additional actions could
result in additional restructuring charges.
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If we fail to implement our business strategy, our financial condition and results of operations could be materially and adversely
affected.
Our future financial performance and success are dependent, in large part, upon our ability to successfully implement our business strategy

to introduce new seismic technologies and to reduce costs through outsourcing manufacturing and certain research and development activities.
We cannot assure you that we will be able to successfully implement our business strategy or be able to improve our operating results. In
particular, we cannot assure you that we will be able to stimulate sufficient demand for our VectorSeis products, our AZIM processing services
or our traditional analog product line, to execute our growth strategy (including acquisitions) or to sufficiently reduce our costs to achieve
required efficiencies. Our strategic direction also may give rise to unforeseen costs, which could wholly or partially offset any expense
reductions or other financial benefits we attain as a result of the changes to our business.

We are in the process of evaluating and may, from time to time in the future, evaluate the acquisition of assets or operations that
complement our existing businesses. We cannot estimate what impact, if any, our acquisition of these assets or operations may have on our
business.

Furthermore, we cannot assure you that we will be successful in our acquisition efforts or that we will be able to effectively manage
expanded or acquired operations. Our ability to achieve our acquisition or expansion objectives and to effectively manage our growth depends
on a number of factors, including:

� our ability to identify appropriate acquisition targets and to negotiate acceptable terms for their acquisition;

� our ability to integrate new businesses into our operations; and

� the availability of capital on acceptable terms.

Our business strategy may require additional funding, which may be provided in the form of additional debt, equity financing or a
combination thereof. We cannot assure you that we will be able to obtain this financing, and if so, on advantageous terms and conditions.

Implementation of our business strategy could be affected by a number of factors beyond our control, such as increased competition, general
economic conditions or increased operating costs. Any failure to successfully implement our business strategy could materially and adversely
affect our financial condition and results of operations. We may, in addition, decide to alter or discontinue certain aspects of our business
strategy at any time.

Technologies and businesses that we acquire may be difficult to integrate, disrupt our business, dilute stockholder value or divert
management attention.
An important aspect of our current business strategy is to seek new technologies, products and businesses to broaden the scope of our

existing and planned product lines and technologies. While we intend to focus on acquisitions that complement our technologies and our general
business strategy, there can be no assurance that we will be successful in locating such acquisitions or that any completed acquisition will
achieve the expected benefit.

In addition, an acquisition may result in unexpected costs, expenses and liabilities. For example, during 2002, we acquired certain assets of
S/ N Technologies and, in April 2003, we invested $3.0 million in EVP. These transactions were not successful and we have since completely
written down the costs of the assets we purchased from S/ N Technologies and have written down our investment in EVP to its approximate
liquidation value of $1.0 million.

Our ability to achieve our expansion and acquisition objectives will also depend on the availability of capital on acceptable terms. Our
combined businesses resulting from any acquisitions may not be able to generate sufficient operating cash flows in order for us to obtain
additional financing or fund our acquisition strategy.

Acquisitions expose us to:

� 
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increased costs associated with the acquisition and operation of the new businesses or technologies and the management of geographically
dispersed operations;

� risks associated with the assimilation of new technologies, operations, sites and personnel;
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� the possible loss of key employees;

� risks that any technology we acquire may not perform as well as we had anticipated;

� the diversion of management�s attention and other resources from existing business concerns;

� the potential inability to replicate operating efficiencies in the acquired company�s operations;

� the inability to generate revenues to offset associated acquisition costs;

� the continuing need to maintain uniform standards, controls, and procedures;

� the impairment of relationships with employees and customers as a result of any integration of new and inexperienced management
personnel; and

� the risk that acquired technologies do not provide us with the benefits we anticipated.

The identification of suitable acquisition candidates can be difficult, time-consuming and costly, and we may not be able to successfully
complete identified potential acquisitions. Integration of acquired businesses require significant efforts from each entity, including coordinating
existing business plans and research and development efforts. Integrating operations may distract management�s attention from the day-to-day
operation of the combined companies. If we are unable to successfully integrate the operations of acquired businesses, our future results will be
negatively impacted.

Acquisitions may also result in the issuance of dilutive equity securities, the incurrence or assumption of debt and additional expenses
associated with the amortization of acquired intangible assets or potential businesses. There is no assurance that past or future acquisitions will
generate additional income, cash flows or provide any benefit to our business.

We have developed outsourcing arrangements with third parties to manufacture some of our products. If these third parties fail to
deliver quality products or components at reasonable prices on a timely basis, we may alienate some of our customers and our revenues,
profitability and cash flow may decline.
As part of our strategic direction, we are increasing our use of contract manufacturers as an alternative to our own manufacture of products.

If, in implementing this initiative, we are unable to identify contract manufacturers willing to contract with us on competitive terms and to
devote adequate resources to fulfill their obligations to us or if we do not properly manage these relationships, our existing customer
relationships may suffer. In addition, by undertaking these activities, we run the risk that the reputation and competitiveness of our products and
services may deteriorate as a result of the reduction of our control over quality and delivery schedules. We also may experience supply
interruptions, cost escalations and competitive disadvantages if our contract manufacturers fail to develop, implement, or maintain
manufacturing methods appropriate for our products and customers.

If any of these risks are realized, our revenues, profitability and cash flow may decline. In addition, as we come to rely more heavily on
contract manufacturers, we may have fewer personnel resources with expertise to manage problems that may arise from these third-party
arrangements.

The current oversupply of seismic data and downward pricing pressures has, and may continue to, adversely affect our operations and
significantly reduce our operating margins and income.
The current industry-wide oversupply of speculative surveys conducted and collected by geophysical contractors, and their practice of

lowering prices to their customers for these surveys, in order to recover investments in assets used to conduct 3-D surveys has in recent years
adversely affected our results of operations and financial condition. Particularly during periods of reduced levels of exploration for oil and gas,
the oversupply of seismic data and downward pricing pressures limit our ability to meet sales objectives and maintain profit margins for our
products and sustain growth of our business. These industry conditions have reduced, and if continued into the future, will reduce, our revenues
and operating margins.

Edgar Filing: INPUT OUTPUT INC - Form 10-K/A

27



Oil and gas companies and geophysical contractors will reduce demand for our products and services if the level of exploration
expenditures continues to remain relatively low.
Historically, demand for our products has been sensitive to the level of exploration spending by oil and gas companies and geophysical

contractors. Exploration expenditures have tended in the past to follow trends in the price of oil and gas, which have fluctuated widely in recent
years in response to relatively minor changes
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in supply and demand for oil and gas, market uncertainty and a variety of other factors beyond our control. Prolonged reductions in oil and gas
prices will generally depress the level of exploration activity and correspondingly depress demand for our products and services. A prolonged
downturn in market demand for our products or services will have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial condition.
Additionally, we cannot assure you that increases in oil and gas prices will increase demand for our products and services or otherwise have a
positive effect on our results of operations or financial condition.

Factors affecting the prices of oil and gas include:

� level of demand for oil and gas;

� worldwide political, military and economic conditions, including the ability of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries
(OPEC) to set and maintain production levels and prices for oil

� level of oil and gas production;

� government policies regarding the exploration for, and production and development of, oil and gas reserves in their jurisdictions; and

� global weather conditions.

The markets for oil and gas historically have been volatile and are likely to continue to be so in the future.

We have a history of operating losses and we may have losses in the future.
As of and for the year December 31, 2003, we had:

� an accumulated deficit of approximately $158.5 million; and

� incurred an operating loss of $21.3 million and net loss of $23.2 million.

We also had an operating loss and net loss for the year ended December 31, 2002. While we intend to increase revenues, operating income
and net income through acquisitions and internal growth, there can be no assurance we will be successful and our business and financial
condition could be materially and adversely affected.

We will require a significant amount of cash to fund our operations and future acquisitions. We may have difficulty raising needed
capital in the future.
We are significantly more leveraged after the consummation of the offering of the notes. As of December 31, 2003, our outstanding

indebtedness was $81.2 million. As a result, our interest expense is expected to increase for 2004 and in the foreseeable future. In addition, we
presently estimate that our capital expenditures for plant, property and equipment for 2004 will be approximately $5.8 million and that we will
need approximately $28.0 million to meet our contractual obligations in 2004. Moreover, we have expended and will continue to expend
substantial funds to complete the research, development and testing of our products and services. We will require additional funds for these
purposes, to establish additional manufacturing arrangements and to provide for the marketing of our products and services.

We have typically financed operations from internally generated cash and funds from equity and debt financings. Our cash and cash
equivalents decreased $16.7 million, or 22%, from December 31, 2002 to December 31, 2003. This decrease was primarily due to net cash used
in operating activities of $33.1 million and the payment of $31.0 million of indebtedness under the SCF Note. These factors were partially offset
by the $56.5 million of net proceeds from the notes offering. The net cash used in operating activities was mainly due to the loss from operations
for the year, an increase in accounts and notes receivable, an increase in our inventory and a decrease in our accounts payable and accrued
expenses. The increase in our accounts receivable was primarily due to a continued shift in our sales to foreign customers, which historically
have been slower to pay. Our cash and cash equivalents also decreased approximately 24% from December 31, 2001 to December 31, 2002.

There is increasing risk that our collections cycle will further lengthen as we anticipate a larger percentage of our sales will be to foreign
customers, particularly in China and the CIS.
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We cannot assure you that our sources of cash will be sufficient to meet our anticipated future capital requirements. We used a substantial
portion of the proceeds from the sale of the notes to repay in full the approximately $16.0 million of remaining outstanding indebtedness under
the SCF Note and we used a total
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of $36 million cash from such proceeds and from our general corporate funds for the Concept acquisition in February 2004. As a result, the
proceeds from the offering of the notes are not available to fund our future capital requirements and contractual obligations. Additional funds
may not be available on acceptable terms, if at all. If adequate funds are unavailable from operations or additional sources of financing, we
might be forced to reduce or delay acquisitions or capital expenditures, sell assets, reduce operating expenses, refinance all or a portion of our
debt, or delay or reduce important initiatives, such as marketing programs and research or development programs.

In addition, we may seek to raise any necessary additional funds through equity or debt financings, convertible debt financing, alliance
arrangements with corporate partners or other sources, which may be dilutive to existing stockholders and may cause the price of our common
stock to decline.

We derive a substantial amount of our revenues from foreign sales, which pose additional risks.
Sales to customers outside of North America accounted for approximately 77% of our consolidated net sales for the year ended

December 31, 2003, and we believe that export sales will remain a significant percentage of our revenue. United States export restrictions affect
the types and specifications of products we can export. Additionally, to complete certain sales, United States laws may require us to obtain
export licenses, and we cannot assure you that we will not experience difficulty in obtaining these licenses. Operations and sales in countries
other than the United States are subject to various risks peculiar to each country. With respect to any particular country, these risks may include:

� expropriation and nationalization;

� political and economic instability;

� armed conflict and civil disturbance;

� currency fluctuations, devaluations and conversion restrictions;

� confiscatory taxation or other adverse tax policies;

� tariff regulations and import/export restrictions;

� governmental activities that limit or disrupt markets, or restrict payments or the movement of funds; and

� governmental activities that may result in the deprivation of contractual rights.

There is increasing risk that our collections cycle will further lengthen as we anticipate a larger percentage of our sales will be to foreign
customers, particularly those in China and the CIS.

The majority of our foreign sales are denominated in United States dollars. An increase in the value of the dollar relative to other currencies
will make our products more expensive, and therefore less competitive, in foreign markets.

In addition, we are subject to taxation in many jurisdictions and the final determination of our tax liabilities involves the interpretation of the
statutes and requirements of taxing authorities worldwide. Our tax returns are subject to routine examination by taxing authorities, and these
examinations may result in assessments of additional taxes, penalties and/or interest.

The rapid pace of technological change in the seismic industry requires us to make substantial research and development expenditures
and could make our products obsolete.
The markets for our products are characterized by rapidly changing technology and frequent product introductions. We must invest

substantial capital to maintain a leading edge in technology, with no assurance that we will receive an adequate rate of return on such
investments. If we are unable to develop and produce successfully and timely new and enhanced products, we will be unable to compete in the
future and our business, our results of operations and financial condition will be materially and adversely affected.
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Competition from sellers of seismic data acquisition systems and equipment is intensifying and could adversely affect our results of
operations and financial condition.
Our industry is highly competitive. Our competitors have been consolidating into better-financed companies with broader product lines.

Certain of our competitors are affiliated with seismic contractors, which

Edgar Filing: INPUT OUTPUT INC - Form 10-K/A

32



forecloses a portion of the market to us. Some of our competitors have greater name recognition, more extensive engineering, manufacturing and
marketing capabilities, and greater financial, technical and personnel resources than those available to us. Our ability to compete effectively in
the manufacture and sale of seismic instruments and data acquisition systems depends principally upon continued technological innovation, as
well as our reputation for quality, our ability to deliver on schedule and price.

Our competitors have expanded or improved their product lines, which has adversely affected our results of operations. One competitor has
introduced a lightweight land seismic system that we believe has made our current land system more difficult to sell at acceptable margins. In
addition, another competitor introduced a marine solid streamer product that competes with our oil-filled towed streamer product. Streamers are
towed behind marine vessels to acquire seismic data in marine environments and can either be solid or oil-filled. Our net sales of marine
streamers have been, and will continue to be, adversely affected by customer preferences for solid products. In May 2003, we decided to cancel
our internal project to develop a solid streamer product.

Further consolidation among our significant customers could materially and adversely affect us.
Historically, a relatively small number of customers has accounted for the majority of our net sales in any period. In recent years, our

customers have been rapidly consolidating, shrinking the demand for our products. The loss of any of our significant customers to further
consolidation could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and financial condition.

Large fluctuations in our sales and gross margins can result in operating losses.
As our products are technologically complex, we experience a very long sales cycle. In addition, the revenues from any particular sale can

vary greatly from our expectations due to changes in customer requirements. These factors create substantial fluctuations in our net sales from
period to period. Variability in our gross margins compound the uncertainty associated with our sales cycle. Our gross margins are affected by
the following factors:

� pricing pressures from our customers and competitors;

� product mix sold in a period;

� inventory obsolescence;

� unpredictability of warranty costs;

� changes in sales and distribution channels;

� availability and pricing of raw materials and purchased components; and

� absorption of manufacturing costs through volume production.

We must establish our expenditure levels for product development, sales and marketing and other operating expenses based, in large part,
on our forecasted net sales and gross margins. As a result, if net sales or gross margins fall below our forecasted expectations, our operating
results and financial condition are likely to be adversely affected because not all of our expenses vary with our revenues.

Write-offs related to the impairment of long-lived assets and other non-cash charges may adversely impact or delay our profitability.
We may incur significant non-cash charges related to impairment write-downs of our long-lived assets, including goodwill and other

intangible assets. In accordance with Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets,� we
recorded an impairment charge of $15.1 million in 2002 relating to our analog land products reporting unit. Also, in accordance with
SFAS No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets,� we recorded an impairment charge relating to other long-lived
assets of $6.3 million in 2002 (relating to the impairment of our Alvin, Texas manufacturing facility, the leasehold improvements in our
Norwich, U.K. geophone stringing facility and certain related manufacturing equipment at both facilities) and $1.1 million in 2003 (relating to
the cancellation of our solid streamer project within our Marine Imaging segment in the first quarter of 2003).
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We will continue to incur non-cash charges related to amortization of other intangible assets. We are required to perform periodic
impairment reviews of our goodwill at least annually. To the extent these reviews conclude that the carrying value of our goodwill exceeds its
implied fair value, we will be required to record an
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impairment charge to write down our goodwill to its implied fair value. Also, we periodically evaluate the net realizable values of our other
long-lived assets. To the extent these reviews conclude that the expected future cash flows generated from our business activities are not
sufficient to recover the cost of our other long-lived assets, we will be required to measure and record an impairment charge to write down these
assets to their net realizable values. We will conduct our annual goodwill assessment in the fourth quarter. We cannot assure you that upon
completion of this and subsequent reviews, a material impairment charge will not be recorded. If this and future periodic reviews determine that
our assets are impaired and a write down is required, it will adversely impact or delay our profitability.

Our outsourcing relationships may require us to purchase inventory when demand for products produced by third-party manufacturers
is low.
Under a few of our outsourcing arrangements, our manufacturing outsourcers purchase agreed-upon inventory levels to meet our forecasted

demand. Since we typically operate without a significant backlog of orders for our products, our manufacturing plans and inventory levels are
principally based on sales forecasts. If demand proves to be less than we originally forecasted, these manufacturing outsourcers have the right to
require us to purchase any excess or obsolete inventory. Should we be required to purchase inventory under these provisions, we may have to
hold inventory that we may never utilize.

To date, we have not been required to purchase any fixed amount of excess inventory under our outsourcing arrangements, and we have no
existing obligation to purchase any such fixed amount of excess inventory. We are in the process of revising our sales forecasting techniques
with our outsourcers, providing short-term forecasts (usually less than three months) rather than long-term forecasts, which should mitigate the
risk that we will significantly overestimate our inventory needs from these outsourcers.

We may be unable to obtain broad intellectual property protection for our current and future products and we may become involved in
intellectual property disputes.
We rely on a combination of patent, copyright and trademark laws, trade secrets, confidentiality procedures and contractual provisions to

protect our proprietary technologies. We believe that the technological and creative skill of our employees, new product developments, frequent
product enhancements, name recognition and reliable product maintenance are the foundations of our competitive advantage. Although we have
a considerable portfolio of patents, copyrights and trademarks, these property rights offer us only limited protection. Our competitors may
attempt to copy aspects of our products despite our efforts to protect our proprietary rights, or may design around the proprietary features of our
products. Policing unauthorized use of our proprietary rights is difficult, and we are unable to determine the extent to which such use occurs. Our
difficulties are compounded in certain foreign countries where the laws do not offer as much protection for proprietary rights as the laws of the
United States.

Third parties inquire and claim from time to time that we have infringed upon their intellectual property rights. Any such claims, with or
without merit, could be time consuming, result in costly litigation, result in injunctions, require product modifications, cause product shipment
delays or require us to enter into royalty or licensing arrangements. Such claims could have a material adverse affect on our results of operations
and financial condition.

We are not currently aware of any parties that intend to pursue intellectual property claims against us.

Significant payment defaults under extended financing arrangements could adversely affect us.
We often sell to customers on payment terms other than cash on delivery. We allow many of our customers to finance substantial purchases

of our products through the issuance to us of promissory notes. The terms of these promissory notes initially range from eight months to five
years. As of December 31, 2003, we had outstanding accounts receivable of approximately $34.3 million and notes receivable of approximately
$20.8 million. Significant payment defaults by customers could have a material adverse effect on our results of operations and financial
condition.

Approximately $9.7 million of our total notes receivable at December 31, 2003 related to one Russian customer. During 2003, this customer
became delinquent on approximately $0.8 million of its scheduled principal and interest payments, in addition to becoming delinquent on
$1.8 million of its trade receivables. In January 2004, we refinanced the delinquent portion of its notes and accounts receivable into a new note
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totaling $2.6 million, with payments due in equal installments over a twelve month period. The customer is expected to pay all of its obligations
in full.

With respect to customer defaults, our levels of expense for loan loss in recent years have been as follows:

Expense for Loan Loss
Period Ended (in thousands)

Year ended May 31, 2000 $7,057
Seven months ended December 31, 2000 $1,305
Year ended December 31, 2001 $1,577
Year ended December 31, 2002 $ 158
Year ended December 31, 2003 �

Our operations, and the operations of our customers, are subject to numerous government regulations, which could adversely limit our
operating flexibility.
Our operations are subject to laws, regulations, government policies and product certification requirements worldwide. Changes in such

laws, regulations, policies or requirements could affect the demand for our products or result in the need to modify products, which may involve
substantial costs or delays in sales and could have an adverse effect on our future operating results. Our export activities are also subject to
extensive and evolving trade regulations. Certain countries are subject to restrictions, sanctions and embargoes imposed by the United States
government. These restrictions, sanctions and embargoes also prohibit or limit us from participating in certain business activities in those
countries. Our operations are subject to numerous local, state and federal laws and regulations in the United States and in foreign jurisdictions
concerning the containment and disposal of hazardous materials, the remediation of contaminated properties and the protection of the
environment. These laws have been changed frequently in the past, and there can be no assurance that future changes will not have a material
adverse effect on us. In addition, our customers� operations are also significantly impacted by laws and regulations concerning the protection of
the environment and endangered species. Consequently, changes in governmental regulations applicable to our customers may reduce demand
for our products. For instance, regulations regarding the protection of marine mammals in the Gulf of Mexico may reduce demand for our
airguns and other marine products. To the extent that our customer�s operations are disrupted by future laws and regulations, our business and
results of operations may be materially and adversely affected.

Disruption in vendor supplies will adversely affect our results of operations.
Our manufacturing processes require a high volume of quality components. Certain components used by us are currently provided by only

one supplier. We may, from time to time, experience supply or quality control problems with suppliers, and these problems could significantly
affect our ability to meet production and sales commitments. Reliance on certain suppliers, as well as industry supply conditions, generally
involve several risks, including the possibility of a shortage or a lack of availability of key components and increases in component costs and
reduced control over delivery schedules; any of these could adversely affect our future results of operations.

Our stock price may fluctuate, and your investment in our stock could decline in value.
The average daily trading volume of our common stock for the twelve months ending December 31, 2003, was approximately

198,000 shares. The trading volume of our stock may contribute to its volatility, and an active trading market in our stock might not continue.

If substantial amounts of our common stock were to be sold in the public market, the market price of our common stock could fall. Some of
the other factors that can affect our stock price are:

� future demand for seismic equipment and services;

� the announcement of new products, services or technological innovations by us or our competitors;

� the adequacy of our liquidity and capital resources;
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� consolidation among our significant customers;

� continued variability in our revenues or earnings;
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� changes in quarterly revenue or earnings estimates for us made by the investment community; and

� speculation in the press or investment community about our strategic position, financial condition, results of operations, business or
significant transactions.
The market price of our common stock may also fluctuate significantly in response to factors that are beyond our control. The stock market

in general has recently experienced extreme price and volume fluctuations. In addition, the market prices of securities of technology companies
have also been extremely volatile, and have experienced fluctuations that often have been unrelated or disproportionate to the operating
performance of these companies. These broad market fluctuations could result in extreme fluctuations in the price of our common stock, which
could cause a decline in the value of our investors� stock.

Our certificate of incorporation, our bylaws, Delaware law and our stockholder rights plan contain provisions that could discourage
another company from acquiring us.
Provisions of Delaware law, our certificate of incorporation, bylaws and stockholder rights plan may discourage, delay or prevent a merger

or acquisition that stockholders may consider favorable, including transactions in which you might otherwise receive a premium for shares of
our common stock. These provisions include:

� authorizing the issuance of �blank check� preferred stock without any need for action by stockholders;

� providing for a dividend on our common stock, commonly referred to as a �poison pill�, which can be triggered after a person or group
acquires, obtains the right to acquire, or commences a tender or exchange offer to acquire, 20% or more of our outstanding common stock;

� providing for a classified board of directors with staggered terms;

� requiring supermajority stockholder voting to effect certain amendments to our certificate of incorporation and by-laws;

� eliminating the ability of stockholders to call special meetings of stockholders;

� prohibiting stockholder action by written consent; and

� establishing advance notice requirements for nominations for election to the board of directors or for proposing matters that can be acted
on by stockholders at stockholder meetings.

The loss of certain members of our senior management team (many of whom have only recently joined our company) could have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition and results of operations.
Our success depends, in part, on the efforts of our senior management and other key employees. These individuals possess sales, marketing,

technical, engineering, manufacturing and processing skills that are critical to executing our business strategy. If we lose or suffer an extended
interruption in the services of one or more of our senior officers, our financial condition and results of operations may be adversely affected.
Moreover, the market for qualified individuals may be highly competitive, and we may not be able to attract and retain qualified personnel to
replace or succeed members of our senior management or other key employees, should the need arise.

While many members of our current senior management team have significant experience working at various large corporations, with some
of them working together at those corporations, our senior management has had limited experience working together at our company and
implementing our current business strategy. In April 2003, Robert P. Peebler became our chief executive officer after serving as a member of
our Board of Directors since 1999. To help lead the implementation of our seismic imaging-based strategy, Mr. Peebler has recruited several
new senior executives to augment our management team, including Jorge Machnizh, Executive Vice President and Chief Operating Officer, J.
Michael Kirksey, Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer, Chris Friedemann, Vice President � Commercial Development, and Jim
Hollis, Vice President � Land Imaging Systems.

Our significant debt obligations could limit our flexibility in managing our business and expose us to certain risks.
As a result of the offering of the notes, we now have an increased level of indebtedness outstanding. As of December 31, 2003, we had

$81.2 million of indebtedness outstanding (including our lease obligations under
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our facilities sale-leaseback arrangements). As a result, our interest expense is expected to increase for 2004 and in the foreseeable future. Our
ability to make scheduled payments of principal or interest on, or to refinance, our indebtedness depends on our future business performance,
which is subject to many economic, financial, competitive and other factors beyond our control. We do not have a working capital or other
senior credit facility in place to finance our working capital needs. Our degree of leverage may have important consequences to you, including
the following:

� we may have difficulty satisfying our obligations under the notes or other indebtedness and, if we fail to comply with these requirements,
an event of default could result;

� we may be required to dedicate a substantial portion of our cash flow from operations to required payments on indebtedness, thereby
reducing the availability of cash flow for working capital, capital expenditures and other general corporate activities;

� covenants relating to future debt may limit our ability to obtain additional financing for working capital, capital expenditures and other
general corporate activities;

� covenants relating to future debt may limit our flexibility in planning for, or reacting to, changes in our business and the industry in which
we operate;

� we may be more vulnerable to the impact of economic downturns and adverse developments in our business; and

� we may be placed at a competitive disadvantage against any less leveraged competitors.

The occurrence of any one of these events could have a material adverse effect on our business, financial condition, results of operations,
prospects and ability to satisfy our obligations under the notes.

We may not be able to generate sufficient cash flows to meet our operational, growth and debt service needs.
Our cash and cash equivalents declined from $76.2 million at December 31, 2002 to $59.5 million at December 31, 2003, a decrease of

$16.7 million, or 22%. Our ability to fund our operations, grow our business and to make scheduled payments on our indebtedness and our other
obligations, including the notes, will depend on our financial and operating performance, which in turn will be affected by general economic
conditions in the energy industry and by many financial, competitive, regulatory and other factors beyond our control. We cannot assure you that
our business will generate sufficient cash flow from operations or that future sources of capital will be available to us in an amount sufficient to
enable us to service our indebtedness, including the notes, or to fund our other liquidity needs.

If we are unable to generate sufficient cash flows to fund our operations, grow our business and satisfy our debt obligations, we may have to
undertake additional or alternative financing plans, such as refinancing or restructuring our debt, selling assets, reducing or delaying capital
investments or seeking to raise additional capital. We cannot assure you that any refinancing would be possible, that any assets could be sold, or,
if sold, of the timing of the sales and the amount of proceeds that may be realized from those sales, or that additional financing could be obtained
on acceptable terms, if at all. Our inability to generate sufficient cash flows to satisfy debt obligations, or to refinance our indebtedness on
commercially reasonable terms, would materially and adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations and our ability to satisfy
our obligations under the notes.

Sales (or the expectation of sales) of shares of our common stock under our registration rights agreements may cause the market price
of our common stock to decline.
Approximately 7,474,000 of our shares of common stock are subject to registration rights, which include the right to require us to register

the sale of their shares or the right to include their shares in secondary public offerings we undertake in the future. These holders include Laitram
L.L.C., which beneficially owns approximately 10.9% of our common stock subject to piggyback registration rights. We also may enter into
additional registration rights agreements in the future in connection with any subsequent acquisitions we may undertake. Any sales of our
common stock under these registration rights arrangements with these stockholders could be negatively perceived in the trading markets and
negatively affect the price of our common stock. Sales of a substantial number of our shares of common stock in the public market under these
arrangements, or the expectation of such sales, could cause the market price of our common stock to decline.
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NOTE: The foregoing factors pursuant to the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 should not be construed as
exhaustive. In addition to the foregoing, we wish to refer readers to other factors discussed elsewhere in this report as well as other
filings and reports with the SEC for a further discussion of risks and uncertainties which could cause actual results to differ materially
from those contained in forward-looking statements. We undertake no obligation to publicly release the result of any revisions to any
such forward-looking statements, which may be made to reflect the events or circumstances after the date hereof or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events.

Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules, and Reports on Form 8-K
(a) List of Documents Filed.

(1) Financial Statements

The financial statements filed as part of this report are listed in the �Index to Consolidated Financial Statements� on page F-1 hereof.

(2) Financial Statement Schedules

The following financial statement schedule is included as part of this Annual Report on Form 10-K:

Schedule II � Valuation and Qualifying Accounts

All other schedules are omitted because they are inapplicable or the requested information is shown in the financial statements or noted
therein.
(3) Exhibits

3.1 � Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company�s Transition
Report on Form 10-K for the seven months ended December 31, 2000, and incorporated herein by
reference.

*3.2 � Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated October 10,
1996.

3.3 � Amended and Restated Bylaws filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 8, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference.

4.1 � Form of Certificate of Designation, Preference and Rights of Series A Preferred Stock of
Input/Output, Inc., filed as Exhibit 2 to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated
January 27, 1997 (attached as Exhibit 1 to the Rights Agreement referenced in Exhibit 10.4), and
incorporated herein by reference. The Rights Agreement and First Amendment to Rights Agreement are
incorporated by reference herein as Exhibits 10.4 and 10.6 hereof.

4.2 � Indenture of Input/Output, Inc. dated as of December 10, 2003, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 dated January 27, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.1 � Amended and Restated 1990 Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-80299), filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on June 9, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.2 � Lease Agreement dated as of August 20, 2001, between NL Ventures III Stafford L.P. and
Input/Output, Inc. filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended September 30, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.3 � Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, filed as
Exhibit 4.3 to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-80299), filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.4 � Rights Agreement, dated as of January 17, 1997, by and between Input/Output, Inc. and Harris Trust
and Savings Bank, as Rights Agent, including exhibits thereto, filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company�s
Form 8-A dated January 27, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.5 � Input/Output, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-24125) filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 18, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference.
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10.6 � First Amendment to Rights Agreement by and between the Company and Harris Trust and Savings
Bank as Rights Agent, dated April 21, 1999, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company�s Form 8-K dated
April 21, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

*10.7 � Registration Rights Agreement by and among the Company and The Laitram Corporation, dated
November 16, 1998.

**10.8 � Input/Output, Inc. 1998 Restricted Stock Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on S-8 (Registration No. 333-80297), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on June 9, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.9 � Input/Output Inc. Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company�s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by
reference.

**10.10 � Amendment No. 1 to the Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Director
Stock Option Plan, dated September 13, 1999, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company�s Quarterly Report
on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.11 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Bjarte Fageraas dated effective as of
February 4, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.12 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Laura Guthrie dated effective as of
February 4, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.13 � Input/Output, Inc. 2000 Restricted Stock Plan, effective as of March 13, 2000 filed as Exhibit 10.27 to
the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2000, and incorporated
herein by reference.

**10.14 � Input/Output, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Stock Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-49382) dated November 6, 2000 and incorporated by reference
herein.

**10.15 � Amended and Restated 1991 Directors Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company�s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 on October 19, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.16 � Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1991 Directors Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.9 to
the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 1997, and incorporated
herein by reference.

**10.17 � Amendment No. 2 to the Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1991 Director Stock Option Plan,
dated September 13, 1999, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.18 � Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 10, 2003, between Input/Output, Inc. and
Morgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Registration Statement on
Form S-3 dated January 27, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.19 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Robert P. Peebler dated effective as of
March 31, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 31,
2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.20 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Jorge Machnizh dated effective as of
April 23, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

* **10.21 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and J. Michael Kirksey dated effective as of
January 1, 2004.

10.22 � Share Acquisition Agreement dated February 23, 2004 filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.23 � Registration Rights Agreement dated February 23, 2004 filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.24 � Input/Output, Inc. Non-Employee Directors� Retainer Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company�s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated May 15, 2001 (Registration No. 333-60950), and
incorporated herein by reference.

*21.1 � Subsidiaries of the Company.
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�23.1 � Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
*24.1 � The Power of Attorney is set forth on the signature page.
�31.1 � Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15(d)-14(a).
�31.2 � Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15(d)-14(a).
�32.1 � Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350.
�32.2 � Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350.

* Filed with the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 12, 2004.

** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

� Filed herewith.
(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On December 4, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K reporting under Item 5. �Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure� the
Company�s intention to sell its Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 in a private, unregistered offering to qualified institutional buyers pursuant to
Rule 144A under the Securities Act.

On December 5, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K reporting under Item 5. �Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure� the
pricing of the Company�s private offering of its Convertible Senior Notes due 2008.

On December 17, 2003, we filed a Current Report on Form 8-K reporting under Item 5. �Other Events and Regulation FD Disclosure� the
initial purchaser of Company�s 5.50% Convertible Senior Notes due 2008 had exercised its over-allotment option.

(c) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K.

Reference is made to subparagraph (a) (3) of this Item 14, which is incorporated herein by reference.

(d) Not applicable.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Registrant has duly caused this Form 10-K/ A-2
(Amendment No. 2 to Form 10-K) to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly authorized.

Input/Output, Inc.
(Registrant)

Date: May 10, 2004

By: /s/ J. MICHAEL KIRKSEY

J. Michael Kirksey
Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this Amendment No. 2 to the Annual Report on
Form 10-K has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the Registrant and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Capacities Date

/s/ ROBERT P. PEEBLER

Robert P. Peebler

President, Chief Executive Officer and Director
(Principal Executive Officer)

May 10,
2004

/s/ J. MICHAEL KIRKSEY

J. Michael Kirksey

Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

May 10,
2004

/s/ MICHAEL L. MORRISON

Michael L. Morrison

Controller and Director of Accounting (Principal
Accounting Officer)

May 10,
2004

*

James M. Lapeyre, Jr.

Chairman of the Board of Directors and Director May 10,
2004

*

Bruce S. Applebaum

Director May 10,
2004

*

Theodore H. Elliott, Jr.

Director May 10,
2004

*

Franklin Myers

Director May 10,
2004

*

John N. Seitz

Director May 10,
2004

* Director May 10,
2004
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Sam K. Smith

*By: /s/ J. MICHAEL KIRKSEY

J. Michael Kirksey
Attorney-in-fact
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INPUT/ OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Page

Input/Output, Inc. and Subsidiaries:
Report of Independent Auditors F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets � December 31, 2003 and December 31, 2002 F-3
Consolidated Statements of Operations � Years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows � Years ended December 31, 2003,
2002 and 2001 F-5
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity and Comprehensive
Earnings (Loss) � Years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 F-6
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-7
Schedule II � Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-1

All other schedules are omitted because they are not applicable or the required information is shown in the financial statements or notes thereto.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Board of Directors and

Stockholders of Input/Output, Inc.:

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements listed in the accompanying index, present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of Input/Output, Inc. and its subsidiaries (the �Company�) at December 31, 2003 and 2002, and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2003 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America. In addition, in our opinion, the financial statement schedule listed in the accompanying index presents fairly, in all
material respects, the information set forth therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial statements. These financial
statements and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Company�s management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements and financial statement schedule based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financial statements, in 2002, the Company changed its method of accounting for goodwill as a
result of adopting the provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 142 �Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.�

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has restated its consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2003 and 2002 and its consolidated
statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2002.

/s/ PRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERS LLP
Houston, Texas

February 27, 2004, except as to the paragraph titled �Restatement� in Note 1, which is
as of May 10, 2004

F-2
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INPUT/ OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,

2003 2002

(In thousands, except
share data)
Restated

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 59,507 $ 76,218
Restricted cash 1,127 1,173
Accounts receivable, net 34,270 18,745
Current portion notes receivable, net 14,420 6,137
Inventories 53,551 50,010
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 3,703 3,136

Total current assets 166,578 155,419
Notes receivable 6,409 12,057
Net assets held for sale 3,331 �
Property, plant and equipment, net 27,607 39,255
Deferred income taxes 1,149 1,149
Goodwill, net 35,025 33,758
Other assets, net 9,105 7,956

Total assets $ 249,204 $ 249,594

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Notes payable and current maturities of long-term debt $ 2,687 $ 2,142
Accounts payable 14,591 18,927
Accrued expenses 15,833 17,210
Warrant obligation � 2,200

Total current liabilities 33,111 40,479
Long-term debt, net of current maturities 78,516 51,430
Other long-term liabilities 3,813 5,199
Commitments and contingencies (Notes 18 and 22)
Stockholders� equity:
Common stock, $.01 par value; authorized
100,000,000 shares; outstanding 51,390,334 shares at
December 31, 2003 and 51,078,939 shares at
December 31, 2002, net of treasury stock 522 519
Additional paid-in capital 296,663 296,002
Accumulated deficit (158,537) (135,385)
Accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss) 1,292 (2,380)
Treasury stock, at cost, 777,423 shares at December 31,
2003 and 783,298 shares at December 31, 2002 (5,826) (5,929)
Unamortized restricted stock compensation (350) (341)

Total stockholders� equity 133,764 152,486
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Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 249,204 $ 249,594

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-3
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INPUT/ OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Restated
(In thousands, except share and per share data)

Net sales $ 150,033 $ 118,583 $ 212,050
Cost of sales 121,133 99,624 138,415
Amortization of intangibles 1,059 1,394 1,063

Gross profit 27,841 17,565 72,572

Operating expenses:
Research and development 18,696 28,756 29,442
Marketing and sales 12,566 11,218 11,657
General and administrative 16,753 19,760 19,695
Amortization of goodwill � � 3,873
Impairment of long-lived assets 1,120 6,274 �
Goodwill impairment � 15,122 �

Total operating expenses 49,135 81,130 64,667

Earnings (loss) from operations (21,294) (63,565) 7,905
Interest expense (4,087) (3,124) (695)
Interest income 1,903 2,280 4,685
Fair value adjustment and exchange of warrant
obligation 1,757 3,252 �
Impairment of investment (2,059) � �
Other income (expense) 976 (798) 574

Earnings (loss) before income taxes (22,804) (61,955) 12,469
Income tax expense 348 56,770 3,128

Net earnings (loss) (23,152) (118,725) 9,341
Preferred dividend � 947 5,632

Net earnings (loss) applicable to common shares $ (23,152) $ (119,672) $ 3,709

Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07

Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding 51,236,771 51,014,505 51,166,026

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07

Weighted average number of diluted common shares
outstanding 51,236,771 51,014,505 52,308,578
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See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INPUT/ OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Restated
(In thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings (loss) to net cash
(used in) provided by operating activities:
Net earnings (loss) $(23,152) $(118,725) $ 9,341
Depreciation and amortization 11,444 13,237 17,535
Fair value adjustment and exchange of warrant
obligation (1,757) (3,252) �
Impairment of long-lived assets 1,120 6,274 �
Goodwill impairment � 15,122 �
Write-down of rental equipment 2,500 � �
Impairment of investment in Energy Virtual
Partners, Inc. 2,059 � �
Amortization of restricted stock and other stock
compensation (222) 417 246
Deferred income tax � 58,843 (976)
Bad debt expense 569 2,701 1,959
(Gain) loss on disposal of fixed assets (291) 930 372

Change in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts and notes receivable (17,059) 14,338 (7,867)
Inventories (4,877) 19,423 1,143
Accounts payable and accrued expenses (7,529) 2,875 (3,728)
Other assets and liabilities 4,125 1,469 (444)

Net cash (used in) provided by operating activities (33,070) 13,652 17,581

Cash flows from investing activities:
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (4,587) (8,230) (9,202)
Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets 490 � �
Business acquisition � (3,151) (7,608)
Cash of acquired business � 501 2,032
Contingent consideration paid to former shareholders of
AXIS Geophysics, Inc. (1,267) � �
Investment in Energy Virtual Partners, Inc. (3,036) � �
Liquidation of Energy Virtual Partners, Inc. 869 � �

Net cash used in investing activities (7,531) (10,880) (14,778)

Cash flows from financing activities:
Net proceeds from issuance of long-term debt 56,550 � 18,837
Payments on notes payable and long-term debt (34,237) (2,550) (9,409)
Deposit to secure a letter of credit (1,500) � �
Payments of preferred dividends � (411) (550)
Purchase of treasury stock (81) (160) (4,032)
Proceeds from exercise of stock options � 992 2,007
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 470 823 768
Payments to repurchase preferred stock � (30,000) �
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Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 21,202 (31,306) 7,621

Effect of change in foreign currency exchange rates on cash
and cash equivalents 2,688 3,385 (1,079)

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (16,711) (25,149) 9,345
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 76,218 101,367 92,022

Cash and cash equivalents at end of period $ 59,507 $ 76,218 $101,367

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

F-5

Edgar Filing: INPUT OUTPUT INC - Form 10-K/A

54



INPUT/ OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY AND

COMPREHENSIVE EARNINGS (LOSS)
Years Ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001

Cumulative
Convertible Accumulated Unamortized

Preferred Stock Common Stock Additional Other Restricted Total
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Treasury Stock Stockholders�

Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Earnings
(Loss) Stock Compensation Equity

(In thousands, except share data)
Balance at
January 1, 2001 55,000 $ 1 50,936,420 $ 512 $352,294 $ (19,422) $ (5,353) $ (1,737) $ (892) $ 325,403
Comprehensive
earnings:
Net earnings � � � � � 9,341 � � � 9,341

Other
comprehensive
loss:
Translation
adjustment � � � � � � (2,146) � � (2,146)

Total
comprehensive
earnings 7,195
Amortization of
restricted stock
compensation � � � � � � � � 246 246
Purchase
treasury stock � � (499,798) � � � � (4,032) � (4,032)
Preferred
dividend � � � � 5,082 (5,632) � � � (550)
Exercise of stock
options � � 326,921 4 2,003 � � � � 2,007
Issuance of stock
for the Employee
Stock Purchase
Plan � � 102,186 � 768 � � � � 768

Balance at
December 31, 2001 55,000 1 50,865,729 516 360,147 (15,713) (7,499) (5,769) (646) 331,037
Comprehensive
loss:
Net loss, as
previously
reported � � � � � (119,874) � � � (119,874)
Adjustment
(Note 1) 1,149 1,149

Net loss, as
restated (118,725) (118,725)

Other
comprehensive
earnings:
Translation
adjustment � � � � � � 5,119 � � 5,119

Total
comprehensive

(113,606)
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loss
Amortization of
restricted stock
compensation � � � � � � � � 417 417
Issuance of
restricted stock
award � � 28,450 � 270 � � � (270) �
Cancellation of
restricted stock
award � � (20,000) � (158) � � � 158 �
Purchase
treasury stock � � (40,000) � � � � (160) � (160)
Preferred
dividend � � � � � (947) � � � (947)
Repurchase and
exchange of
preferred stock (55,000) (1) � � (66,069) � � � � (66,070)
Exercise of stock
options � � 126,884 2 990 � � � � 992
Issuance of stock
for the Employee
Stock Purchase
Plan � � 117,876 1 822 � � � � 823

Balance at
December 31, 2002 � � 51,078,939 519 296,002 (135,385) (2,380) (5,929) (341) 152,486
Comprehensive
loss:
Net loss � � � � � (23,152) � � � (23,152)

Other
comprehensive
earnings:
Translation
adjustment � � � � � � 3,672 � � 3,672

Total
comprehensive
loss (19,480)
Amortization of
restricted stock
compensation � � � � � � � � 498 498
Issuance of
restricted stock
award � � 260,038 2 1,047 � � � (1,049) �
Cancellation of
restricted stock
award � � (206,640) (2) (1,259) � � � 542 (719)
Purchase
treasury stock � � (16,939) � � � � (81) � (81)
Exchange of
warrant
obligation � � 125,000 1 441 � � � � 442
Issuance of stock
for the Employee
Stock Purchase
Plan � � 127,122 2 468 � � � � 470
Issuance of
treasury stock � � 22,814 � (36) � � 184 � 148

Balance at
December 31, 2003 � $ � 51,390,334 $ 522 $296,663 $ (158,537) $ 1,292 $ (5,826) $ (350) $ 133,764

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.
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INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(1) Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
General Description and Principles of Consolidation. Input/Output, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries offer a full suite of related

products and services for seismic data acquisition and processing, including products incorporating traditional analog technologies and products
incorporating the proprietary VectorSeis, True Digital technology. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of
Input/Output, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the �Company� or �I/O�). Inter-company balances and transactions
have been eliminated.

Restatement: The consolidated financial statements for 2003 and 2002, respectively, have been restated to give effect to a net operating loss
carryback not previously considered by the Company in its analysis of the net deferred tax asset valuation allowance determined during 2002. In
2002, the Company did not give consideration to its ability to carryback net operating losses to prior periods to recover previously paid
alternative minimum taxes. This oversight was discovered during early 2004 through the performance of a tax study. The effect of the
restatement on the Company�s consolidated balance sheet was to increase deferred income taxes and decrease the accumulated deficit at both
December 31, 2002 and 2003 by $1.1 million. The effect on the consolidated statement of operations for 2002 was to decrease income tax
expense, net loss and net loss applicable to common shares by $1.1 million, and decrease basic and diluted loss per common share by $0.02. The
restatement had no impact on the previously reported statement of operations for 2003.

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States
of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Significant estimates are made at discrete
points in time based on relevant market information. These estimates may be subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of
judgment and therefore cannot be determined with exact precision. Areas involving significant estimates include, but are not limited to, accounts
and notes receivable, inventory valuation, deferred taxes, and accrued warranty costs. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents. The Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments with an original maturity of three months or less to
be cash equivalents. At December 31, 2003 and 2002 there were $1.1 million and $1.2 million, respectively, of restricted cash used to secure
standby and commercial letters of credit.

Accounts and Notes Receivable. Accounts and notes receivable are recorded at cost, less the related allowance for doubtful accounts and
loan loss. The Company considers current information and events regarding the customers� ability to repay their obligations, and considers an
account or note to be impaired when it is probable that the Company will be unable to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms.
When an account or note is considered impaired, the amount of the impairment is measured based on the present value of expected future cash
flows or the fair value of collateral. Impairment losses (recoveries) are included in the allowance for doubtful accounts and for loan loss through
an increase (decrease) in bad debt expense. Notes receivable are collateralized by the products sold and bear interest at contractual rates up to
12.7% per year. Cash receipts on impaired notes are applied to reduce the principal amount of such notes until the principal has been recovered
and are recognized as interest income thereafter.

Inventories. Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (primarily first-in, first-out) or market. The Company provides reserves for estimated
obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the difference between cost of inventory and its estimated market value based upon assumptions about
future demand for the Company�s products and market conditions.
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INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Property, Plant and Equipment. Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost. Depreciation expense is provided straight-line over the
following estimated useful lives:

Years

Machinery and equipment 3-8
Buildings 12-25
Leased equipment and other 3-10

Expenditures for renewals and betterments are capitalized; repairs and maintenance are charged to expense as incurred. The cost and
accumulated depreciation of assets sold or otherwise disposed of are removed from the accounts and any gain or loss is reflected in operations.

The Company periodically evaluates the net realizable value of long-lived assets, including property, plant and equipment, relying on a
number of factors including operating results, business plans, economic projections and anticipated future cash flows. Impairment in the carrying
value of an asset held for use is recognized whenever anticipated future cash flows (undiscounted) from an asset are estimated to be less than its
carrying value. The amount of the impairment recognized is the difference between the carrying value of the asset and its fair value.

Financial Instruments. Fair value estimates are made at discrete times based on relevant market information. These estimates may be
subjective in nature and involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment and, therefore, cannot be determined with precision. The
Company believes that the carrying amount of its cash and cash equivalents, accounts and notes receivable and accounts payable approximate
the fair values at those dates. The fair market value of the Company�s notes payable and long-term debt (all fixed interest rates) was
$100.3 million at December 31, 2003. See Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for discussion on the fair value of the warrant
prior to its termination in December 2003.

Derivatives. Effective January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 133, �Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,� as amended, which establishes accounting and reporting standards for derivative instruments
and hedging activities. SFAS No. 133 requires that the Company recognize all derivatives as either assets or liabilities in the Consolidated
Balance Sheet and measure those instruments at fair value. The adoption of SFAS No. 133 did not have a material impact on the Company�s
reported results of operations and financial position.

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets. Goodwill results from business acquisitions and represents the excess of acquisition costs over the
fair value of the net assets of businesses acquired. On January 1, 2002, the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 �Goodwill and Other Intangible
Assets.� Under SFAS No. 142, existing goodwill is no longer amortized, but instead is assessed for impairment at least annually. Under the
transition provisions of SFAS No. 142, there was no impairment at January 1, 2002. Additionally, the Company has elected to make
December 31 the annual impairment assessment date for all reporting units, and will perform additional impairment tests when triggering events
occur. SFAS No. 142 defines a reporting unit as an operating segment or one level below an operating segment. The Company�s reporting units
as of December 31, 2003 were as follows: Digital Land Products, Analog Land Products, Marine Products, Processing and Seabed. During the
third quarter of 2002, the Company performed an interim impairment test on the analog land products reporting unit and recorded an impairment
charge of $15.1 million. The annual impairment assessment performed at December 31, 2003 and 2002 resulted in no impairment of the
Company�s goodwill. See further discussion at Note 10 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Intangible assets other than goodwill relate to proprietary technology, patents, customer lists, and non-compete agreements that are
amortized over the estimated periods of benefit (ranging from 2 to 18 years) and are included in Other Assets, net in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets. The Company reviews the carrying values of these intangible assets for impairment if events or changes in the facts and circumstances
indicate
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INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

that their carrying value may not be recoverable. Any impairment determined is recorded in the current period and is measured by comparing the
fair value of the related asset to its carrying value.

Research and Development. Research and development costs primarily relate to activities that are designed to improve the quality of the
subsurface image and overall acquisition economics of the Company�s customers. The costs associated with these activities are expensed as
incurred. These costs include prototype material and field testing expenses, along with the related salaries, facility costs, allocated corporate
costs, consulting fees, tools and equipment usage, and other miscellaneous expenses associated with these activities. Research and development
expenses were $18.7 million, $28.8 million, and $29.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Revenue Recognition and Product Warranty. Revenue is derived from the sale of data acquisition systems and other seismic equipment as
well as from the processing of seismic data. For the sales of data acquisition systems, the Company follows the requirements of SOP 97-2
�Software Revenue Recognition,� and recognizes revenue when the system is delivered to the customer and risk of ownership has passed to the
customer, or, in the limited case where a customer acceptance clause exists in the contract, the later of delivery or when customer acceptance is
obtained. For the sales of other seismic equipment, the Company recognizes revenue when the equipment is shipped and risk of ownership has
passed to the customer. For processing of seismic data, revenue is recognized at the time of delivery of the processed data to the customer.

When elements such as a data acquisition system and other seismic equipment are contained in a single arrangement, or in related
arrangements with the same customer, the Company allocates revenue to each element based on its relative fair value, provided that such
element meets the criteria for treatment as a separate unit of accounting. The Company limits the amount of revenue recognition for delivered
elements to the amount that is not contingent on the future delivery of products or services. The Company does not grant return or refund
privileges to its customers.

The Company warrants that all manufactured equipment will be free from defects in workmanship, material and parts. Warranty periods
range from 90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the product. The Company provides for estimated warranty
as a charge to costs of sales at the time of sale.

Shipping and Handling Fees. The Company classifies cost associated with shipping and handling fees as a component of cost of sales.
Amounts billed to customers for shipping and handling services are included in net sales.

Income Taxes. Income taxes are accounted for under the liability method. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the
future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their
respective tax bases and operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax
rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
Company reserves for substantially all of its net deferred tax assets and will continue to reserve for substantially all net deferred tax assets until
there is sufficient evidence to warrant reversal (see Note 17 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements). The effect on deferred income tax
assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that includes the enactment date.

Comprehensive Earnings (Loss). Comprehensive earnings (loss), consisting of net earnings (loss) and foreign currency translation
adjustments, is presented in the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders� Equity and Comprehensive Earnings (Loss). The balance in
accumulated other comprehensive earnings (loss) consists of foreign currency translation adjustments.

Earnings (Loss) per Common Share. Basic earnings (loss) per common share is computed by dividing net earnings (loss) applicable to
common shares by the weighted average number of common shares
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INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings (loss) per common share is determined on the assumption that outstanding dilutive stock options
have been exercised and the aggregate proceeds were used to reacquire common stock using the average price of such common stock for the
period. In addition, diluted earnings (loss) per common share assume the conversion to common shares of the convertible senior notes. The
following table summarizes the calculation of weighted average number of common shares and weighted average number of diluted common
shares outstanding for purposes of the computation of basic earnings (loss) per common share and diluted earnings (loss) per common share (in
thousands, except share and per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Restated
Net earnings (loss) applicable to common
shares $ (23,152) $ (119,672) $ 3,709
Weighted average number of common shares
outstanding 51,236,771 51,014,505 51,166,026
Effect of dilutive stock options � � 1,142,552

Weighted average number of diluted common
shares outstanding 51,236,771 51,014,505 52,308,578

Basic earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07

Diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07

At December 31, 2003, 2002, and 2001, 5,588,832; 4,998,043; and 3,718,248 respectively, of common shares subject to stock options were
considered anti-dilutive and not included in the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per common share. In August 2002, the Company
repurchased all outstanding shares of its Series B and Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (the Preferred Stock). As part of the repurchase, the
Company granted a warrant to purchase 2,673,517 shares of the Company�s common stock at $8.00 per share through August 5, 2005. In
December 2003, the Company terminated the warrant by exchanging 125,000 of its common stock for the warrant. Also in December 2003, the
Company issued $60.0 million of notes convertible into its common stock at a conversion rate 231.4815 shares per $1,000 principal amount of
notes (a conversion price of $4.32), which represents 13,888,888 total common shares. The preferred stock, warrant and convertible senior notes
are considered anti-dilutive for all periods outstanding and are not included in the calculation of diluted earnings (loss) per common share.

Foreign Currency Gains and Losses. Assets and liabilities of the Company�s subsidiaries operating outside the United States which account
in a functional currency other than U.S. dollars have been translated to U.S. dollars using the exchange rate in effect at the balance sheet date.
Results of foreign operations have been translated using the average exchange rate during the periods of operation. Resulting translation
adjustments have been recorded as a component of �Accumulated Other Comprehensive Earnings (Loss)� in the Consolidated Statements of
Stockholders� Equity and Comprehensive Earnings (Loss). Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are included in the Consolidated
Statements of Operations as they occur. Total foreign currency transaction gains were $0.6 million, $0.2 million and $0 million, for the years
ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

Concentration and Foreign Sales Risk. The Company relies on a relatively small number of significant customers. Consequently, the
Company is exposed to the risks related to customer concentrations. In 2003, BGP, an international seismic contractor and subsidiary of the
China National Petroleum Corporation (BGP), accounted for approximately 28% of the Company�s consolidated net sales. In 2002, two of the
Company�s largest customers, Western-Geco and Laboratory of Regional Geo-Dynamics, Limited, were responsible for approximately 11% and
10%, respectively, of the Company�s consolidated net sales.
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INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

Sales outside the United States have historically accounted for a significant part of the Company�s net sales. Foreign sales are subject to
special risks inherent in doing business outside of the United States, including the risk of war, civil disturbances, embargo and government
activities, which may disrupt markets and affect operating results.

Demand for products from customers in developing countries is difficult to predict and can fluctuate significantly from year to year. These
changes in demand result primarily from the instability of economies and governments in certain developing countries, changes in internal laws
and policies affecting trade and investment, and because those markets are only beginning to adopt new technologies and establish purchasing
practices. These risks may adversely affect future operating results and financial position. In addition, sales to customers in developing countries
on extended terms can present heightened credit risks.

Stock-Based Compensation. SFAS No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation� allows a company to adopt a fair value based
method of accounting for its stock-based compensation plans, or to continue to follow the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by
Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinion No. 25, �Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees�. The Company has elected to continue to follow
APB Opinion No. 25. If the Company had adopted SFAS No. 123, net earnings (loss), basic earnings (loss) per common share and diluted
earnings (loss) per common share for the periods presented would have been reduced (increased) as follows (in thousands, except per share
amounts):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Restated
Net earnings (loss) applicable to common shares $(23,152) $(119,672) $ 3,709
Add: Stock-based employee compensation expense
included in reported net earnings (loss) applicable to
common shares (222) 417 246
Deduct: Stock-based employee compensation expense
determined under fair value methods for all awards $ (2,463) $ (3,531) $(4,244)

Pro forma net loss $(25,837) $(122,786) $ (289)

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share � as
reported $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07

Pro forma basic and diluted loss per common share $ (0.50) $ (2.41) $ (0.01)

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, for which the exercise price
was equal to the market price of the Company�s common stock on the date of grant, was $2.05, $4.90, and $4.38, respectively. The fair value of
options granted during the year ended December 31, 2003, for which the exercise price exceeded the market price of the Company�s common
stock on the date of grant, was $1.46. The fair value of each option was determined using the Black-Scholes option valuation model. The key
variables used in valuing the options were as follows: average risk-free interest rate based on 5-year Treasury bonds, an estimated option term of
five years, $0 dividends and expected stock price volatility of 60% during the years ended December 31, 2003 and 2002 and 41% during the
year ended December 31, 2001.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements. In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 143, �Accounting
for Asset Retirement Obligations.� This Statement addresses financial accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of
tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs. The provisions of this statement are effective for fiscal years beginning after
June 15, 2002. The Company adopted SFAS No. 143 on January 1, 2003 and its adoption did not have a significant impact on its results of
operations or financial position.

Edgar Filing: INPUT OUTPUT INC - Form 10-K/A

63



F-11

Edgar Filing: INPUT OUTPUT INC - Form 10-K/A

64



INPUT/OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS � (Continued)

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 146, �Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal Activities,� which addresses financial
accounting and reporting for costs associated with exit or disposal activities and nullifies Emerging Issues Task Force (EITF) Issue No. 94-3,
�Liability Recognition for Certain Employee Termination Benefits and Other Costs to Exit an Activity (including Certain Costs Incurred in a
Restructuring).� SFAS No. 146 requires that a liability for a cost associated with an exit or disposal activity is recognized when the liability is
incurred. Under EITF Issue 94-3, a liability for an exit cost was recognized at the date of an entity�s commitment to an exit plan. The provisions
of SFAS No. 146 are effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after December 31, 2002, and the Company has adopted them for
2003. For all exit and disposal activities initiated on or before December 31, 2002, the Company has continued to follow EITF No. 94-3.

In November 2002, the FASB issued Interpretation (FIN) No. 45, �Guarantor�s Accounting and Disclosure Requirements for
Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others: an Interpretation of FASB Statements No. 5, 67, and 107 and Rescission
of FASB Interpretation No. 34.� FIN No. 45 clarifies the requirements of FASB No. 5, �Accounting for Contingencies,� relating to the guarantor�s
accounting for, and disclosure of, the issuance of certain types of guarantees. The initial recognition and measurement provisions of FIN No. 45
are applicable on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 2002. The Company�s adoption of FIN No. 45 did not
have a significant impact on its results of operations or financial position.

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation � Transition and Disclosure � and
Amendment of FASB No. 123.� SFAS No. 148 amends FASB No. 123, �Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation,� to provide alternative methods
of transition for a voluntary change in fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition,
SFAS No. 148 amends the disclosure requirements of SFAS No. 123 to require more prominent disclosures in both annual and interim financial
statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The
Company has elected to continue to follow the intrinsic value method of accounting prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25.

In January 2003, the FASB issued FIN No. 46, �Consolidation of Variable Interest Entities, an Interpretation of ARB No. 51�. The primary
objective of the interpretation is to provide guidance on the identification of and financial reporting for entities over which control is achieved
through means other than voting rights; such entities are known as variable-interest entities (VIEs). FIN No. 46 provides guidance that
determines (1) whether consolidation is required under the �controlling financial interest� model of Accounting Research Bulletin No. 51,
�Consolidated Financial Statements,� or other existing authoritative guidance, or, alternatively, (2) whether the variable-interest model under FIN
No. 46 should be used to account for existing and new entities. In December 2003, the FASB completed deliberations of proposed modifications
to FIN 46 (FIN 46-R) resulting in multiple effective dates based on the nature as well as creation date of the VIE. FIN No. 46, as revised, did not
have a significant impact on the Company�s results of operations or financial position.

In April 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 149, �Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities,� which
amends and clarifies financial accounting and reporting for derivative instruments, including certain derivative instruments embedded in other
contracts (collectively referred to as derivatives) and for hedging activities under SFAS No. 133. This statement is effective for contracts entered
into or modified after June 30, 2003, and for hedging relationships designated after June 30, 2003. The adoption of this statement had no initial
impact on the Company�s results of operations or financial position.

In May 2003, the FASB issued SFAS No. 150, �Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments with Characteristics of both Liabilities and
Equity.� This statement establishes standards for how an issuer classifies and measures certain financial instruments with characteristics of both
liabilities and equity. It
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requires a financial instrument within its scope to be classified as a liability. It is effective for financial instruments entered into or modified after
May 31, 2003, and otherwise is effective at the beginning of the first interim period beginning after June 15, 2003. These effective dates are not
applicable to the provisions of paragraphs 9 and 10 of SFAS 150 as they apply to mandatorily redeemable noncontrolling interests, as the FASB
has delayed these provisions indefinitely. The adoption of this statement had no initial impact on the Company�s results of operations or financial
position.

In December 2003, the SEC issued Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 104, �Revenue Recognition�, which supercedes SAB No. 101,
�Revenue Recognition in Financial Statements.� SAB No. 104�s primary purpose is to rescind accounting guidance contained in SAB No. 101
related to multiple element revenue arrangements, which was superceded as a result of the issuance of EITF 00-21, �Accounting for Revenue
Arrangements with Multiple Deliverables.� While the wording of SAB No. 104 has changed to reflect the issuance of EITF 00-21, the revenue
recognition principles of SAB No. 101 remain largely unchanged by the issuance of SAB No. 104. The impact of SAB No. 104 did not have a
material effect on the Company�s results of operations or financial position.

Reclassification. Certain amounts previously reported in the consolidated financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
current year presentation.

(2) Restructuring Activities
In 2002, the Company initiated a restructuring program which included reducing its full-time headcount by approximately 300 positions,

closing certain of its facilities and relocating those operations to other existing Company facilities or outsourcing those operations to contract
manufacturers. In July 2003, the Company completed the closure of its Alvin, Texas manufacturing facility. See further discussion at Note 3 of
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements. In 2003, the Company completed the relocation of its geophone stringing operations from a leased
facility in Norwich, U.K. to a leased facility in the United Arab Emirates.

Also, as part of this restructuring program, the Company abandoned the non-cancelable lease of its Austin, Texas facility and combined its
two Colorado-based operations into one location, abandoning its non-cancelable lease of its Louisville, Colorado operations. Of the total
abandoned lease costs of $1.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, $1.3 million was included in research and development expense
and $0.6 million in general and administrative expense. In 2003, the Company reduced its accrual for its non-cancelable lease obligations by
$0.1 million due to more favorable terms than anticipated for the sublease of its Louisville facility. Payments under these non-cancelable leases
will expire in 2005.

During 2003, the Company continued evaluating its staffing needs and further reduced its full-time headcount by approximately sixty
individuals. The Company�s full-time headcount was 479 at December 31,
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2003, down from 799 at January 1, 2002. A summary of the Company�s restructuring programs is as follows (in thousands):

2003
Restructuring

2002 Restructuring Plan Plan

Severance Abandoned Severance
Costs Lease Costs Costs

Accruals at January 1, 2002 $ � $ � $ �
Restructuring expense 3,419 1,933 �
Cash payments during the period (2,410) (588) �

Accruals at December 31, 2002 1,009 1,345 �
Restructuring expense � � 1,303
Adjustment to accrual (94) (138) �
Cash payments during the period (821) (567) (1,205)

Accruals at December 31, 2003 $ 94 $ 640 $ 98

In January 2004, the Company announced the consolidation of three operating units within its Land Imaging segment into one division. This
consolidation is expected to eliminate approximately twenty full-time positions resulting in approximate severance charges of $0.4 million in
2004.

Of the total severance expense of $1.3 million for the year ended December 31, 2003, $0.7 million was included in costs of sales,
$0.4 million in research and development expenses and $0.2 million in general and administrative expenses. In 2003, the Company reduced its
severance accrual associated with its 2002 restructuring plan by $0.1 million due to revisions to the number of full-time positions eliminated.

Of the total severance expenses of $3.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002, $1.9 million was included in costs of sales,
$0.8 million in research and development expense, $0.3 million in sales and marketing and $0.4 million in general and administrative expenses.
The remainder of the severance accruals at December 31, 2003 will be paid in 2004.

(3) Net Assets Held for Sale
In July 2003, the Company completed the closure of its Alvin, Texas manufacturing facility and is currently marketing the facility for sale.

The facility and related land had a net carrying value of $2.4 million at December 31, 2003. In addition, during the third quarter of 2003, the
Company listed for sale 16.75 acres of land which is located across from the Company�s headquarters in Stafford, Texas. In January 2004, the
Company completed the sale of the land receiving net proceeds of $1.5 million and will record a gain of $0.6 million in the first quarter of 2004.
The carrying value of the land was $0.9 million at December 31, 2003. These assets have been reclassified as �Held for Sale� under the provisions
of SFAS No. 144, �Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets.�

(4) Impairment of Long-lived Assets
During 2003, the Company incurred a $2.5 million charge to cost of sales related to the write-down of rental equipment associated with the

Company�s first generation radio-based VectorSeis® land acquisition systems. This equipment was being utilized in North America as part of the
strategic marketing alliance between the Company and Veritas DGC Inc. In May 2003, the strategic marketing alliance was terminated. This
equipment was an older generation of the Company�s technology; therefore, the market demand and its net realizable value was significantly less
than the Company�s current generation VectorSeis land acquisition systems. The method of determining fair value was based on the forecasted
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the equipment. The Company�s plan is to continue to market this equipment for sale or lease. As of December 31, 2003, the Company had sold
approximately $0.4 million and entered into leases for approximately $0.7 million of this equipment for its recorded impaired value.

Also during 2003, the Company initiated an evaluation of its solid streamer project and concluded it would no longer internally pursue this
product for commercial development. In conjunction with this evaluation, certain fixed assets and patented technology within the Marine
Imaging segment were determined to be impaired in accordance with SFAS No. 144. As a result, fixed assets of $0.5 million and intangible
assets of $0.6 million were written off as a charge against earnings. In addition, inventory associated with this project of $0.2 million was written
off and included within research and development expenses. The Company is currently evaluating whether there are alternatives for this
technology.

In 2002, the Company began the process of vacating its Alvin, Texas and Norwich, U.K. manufacturing facilities. Due to the planned
closures, the Company performed an impairment test in accordance with SFAS No. 144. As a result of the impairment tests, the Alvin facility,
leasehold improvements of the Norwich geophone stringing facility and certain related manufacturing equipment were considered impaired and
the Company recorded impairment charges of approximately $6.3 million in 2002. The method of determining their fair values was based upon
quoted market prices for the facility and operating cash flows during the interim period prior to closure for the equipment and leasehold
improvements. The Company had planned to dispose of the Alvin facility and related equipment by sale. In 2003, the Company assigned its
right under the Norwich lease to a third party. In July 2003, the Company completed its closure of the Alvin facility, reclassifying the facility
and related land as �Held for Sale� (see Note 3 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and as of December 31, 2003 the Company is
actively marketing the facility for sale.

(5) Investment in Energy Virtual Partners, Inc.
In April 2003, the Company invested $3.0 million in Series B Preferred securities of Energy Virtual Partners, Inc. (EVP) for 22% of the

outstanding ownership interests and 12% of the outstanding voting interests. EVP provided asset management services to large oil and gas
companies to enhance the value of their oil and gas properties. This investment is accounted for under the cost method for investment
accounting. Robert P. Peebler, the Company�s President and Chief Executive Officer, founded EVP in April 2001 and served as EVP�s President
and Chief Executive Officer until joining I/O in March 2003.

During the second quarter of 2003, EVP failed to close two anticipated asset management agreements, which resulted in EVP�s management
re-evaluating its business model and adequacy of capital. During August 2003, the board of directors of EVP voted to liquidate EVP. For that
reason, the Company wrote its investment down to its approximate liquidation value of $1.0 million, resulting in a charge against earnings in
2003 of $2.1 million. In December 2003, the Company received a portion of its final liquidation payment of $0.7 million and expects to receive
an additional $0.1 million in the first quarter of 2004. Mr. Peebler has offered, and the Company has agreed, that all proceeds Mr. Peebler
receives from the liquidation of EVP will be paid to the Company. In December 2003, the Company received $0.1 million from Mr. Peebler and
this amount has been included in the Company�s estimate of liquidation value.
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(6) Inventories
A summary of inventories, net of reserves, is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Raw materials and subassemblies $32,675 $31,447
Work-in-process 5,872 5,781
Finished goods 15,004 12,782

Total $53,551 $50,010

The Company provides for estimated obsolescence or excess inventory equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and its
estimated market value based upon assumptions about future demand for the Company�s products and market conditions. For the years ended
December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 the Company recorded inventory obsolescence and excess inventory charges of approximately $1.0 million,
$4.3 million and $3.6 million, respectively. The Company�s reserve for obsolescence or excess inventory was $11.9 million and $18.2 million at
December 31, 2003 and 2002, respectively. The reduction in reserves was primarily due to reserved inventory which was sold or scrapped
during the year.

In October 2003, the Company purchased certain marine equipment for $3.2 million, which was for an anticipated sale to one customer.
However, this potential customer ceased negotiations after it failed to be awarded an expected survey. In the fourth quarter of 2003, the
Company sold, to other customers, approximately $0.6 million of this inventory and entered into a lease agreement for approximately
$0.3 million. The Company expects to sell the remainder of this inventory in 2004.

As part of the Company�s business plan, the Company is increasing the use of contract manufacturers as an alternative to in-house
manufacturing. Under a few of the Company�s outsourcing arrangements, its manufacturing outsourcers first utilize the Company�s on-hand
inventory, then directly purchase inventory at agreed-upon quantities and lead times in order to meet the Company�s scheduled deliveries. If
demand proves to be less than the Company originally forecasted (therefore allowing the Company to cancel its committed purchase orders with
its manufacturing outsourcer), its outsourcer has the right to require the Company to purchase inventory which it had purchased on the
Company�s behalf. However, since the Company now typically issues purchase orders to its outsourcers based upon its short-term forecast
(usually three months or less), the Company has reduced the risk that it may be required to purchase inventory that it may never utilize.

(7) Accounts and Notes Receivable
A summary of accounts receivable is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Accounts receivable, principally trade $35,820 $20,420
Less allowance for doubtful accounts (1,550) (1,675)

Accounts receivable, net $34,270 $18,745
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Approximately $4.5 million of the Company�s total accounts receivable at December 31, 2003 related to a July 2003 sale of an Image land
data acquisition system to a Chinese customer. This customer experienced certain reliability issues with the system which the Company is
currently working to resolve. The Company expects to be paid in full once all reliability issues have been resolved. Therefore, no allowance has
been established for this receivable.
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Notes receivable are collateralized by the products sold, bear interest at contractual rates up to 12.7% per year and are due at various dates
through 2006. The weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2003 was 7.4%. A summary of notes receivable, accrued interest and
allowance for loan-loss is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Notes receivable and accrued interest $23,442 $ 28,422
Less allowance for loan loss (2,613) (10,228)

Notes receivable, net 20,829 18,194
Less current portion notes receivable, net 14,420 6,137

Long-term notes receivable $ 6,409 $ 12,057

Approximately $9.7 million of the Company�s total notes receivable at December 31, 2003 related to one Russian customer. During 2003,
this customer became delinquent on approximately $0.8 million of its scheduled principal and interest payments, in addition to becoming
delinquent on $1.8 million of its trade receivables. In January 2004, the Company refinanced the delinquent portion of its notes and accounts
receivable into a new note totaling $2.6 million, with payments due in equal installments over a twelve month period. The customer is expected
to pay all of its obligations in full. Therefore, no allowance has been established for this customer.

The activity in the allowance for notes receivable loan loss is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Balance at beginning of period $10,228 $10,735 $10,947
Additions charged to bad debt expense � 158 1,597
Recoveries reducing bad debt expense (1,291) (664) (1,609)
Write-offs charged against the allowance (6,324) (1) (200)

Balance at end of period $ 2,613 $10,228 $10,735

(8) Supplemental Cash Flow Information and Non-Cash Activity
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Cash paid (received) during the period for:
Interest $3,304 $(137) $(4,385)
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Income taxes (384) 15 5,551

In 2003, the Company transferred $2.4 million of inventory at cost to rental equipment in connection with leasing arrangements and sold
previously leased marine rental equipment to a customer via a note agreement for $1.4 million. In addition, the Company financed $1.9 million
of insurance costs through the execution of short-term notes payable. See further discussion at Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

In August 2002, the Company repurchased all outstanding shares of its Preferred Stock. In exchange for the Preferred Stock, the Company
paid $30.0 million in cash at closing, issued a $31.0 million unsecured promissory note due May 7, 2004 and granted a warrant to purchase
2,673,517 shares of the Company�s common stock at $8.00 per share through August 5, 2005. In December 2003, the Company terminated the
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warrant by exchanging 125,000 shares of its common stock for the warrant. See further discussion at Note 14 of Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

(9) Property, Plant and Equipment
A summary of property, plant and equipment, excluding net assets held for sale (see Note 3), is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Land $ 51 $ 1,255
Buildings 21,848 28,751
Machinery and equipment 49,159 73,250
Leased equipment 13,288 4,047
Other 8,150 8,776

92,496 116,079
Less accumulated depreciation 64,889 76,824

Property, plant and equipment, net $27,607 $ 39,255

Total depreciation expense for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $10.3 million, $11.8 million and $12.5 million,
respectively. At December 31, 2003, there was $20.3 million of land and buildings, less accumulated depreciation of $7.7 million, which are
recorded pursuant to a twelve-year non-cancelable lease agreement (see Note 13 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements) and are being
depreciated over the twelve-year lease term.

(10) Goodwill
In August 2003, the Company paid $1.3 million in additional consideration to the former shareholders of AXIS Geophysics, Inc. (AXIS) to

settle all future contingent obligations. This additional consideration was recorded as an increase to goodwill. See further discussion at Note 15
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

During the third quarter of 2002, the Company performed an interim impairment test on the Company�s analog land products reporting unit.
This reporting unit represents the Company�s traditional analog geophones, vehicles and vibrators, cables and connectors. The continuing
weakness in the traditional analog land seismic markets and the financial condition of many of the seismic contractors, coupled with an
anticipated decrease in demand for analog products, precipitated the need for this interim impairment. The results of the impairment test
indicated that all of the goodwill associated with the Company�s analog land products reporting unit was impaired. Therefore an impairment
charge of $15.1 million was recorded in the third quarter of 2002. The annual impairment assessment performed at December 31, 2003 and 2002
resulted in no impairment of the Company�s goodwill. The Company determines the fair value of the reporting units using a discounted future
returns valuation method.
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The following is a summary of the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended December 31, 2003 and 2002:

Land Marine Processing
Division Division Division Total

Balance as of January 1, 2002 $ 18,939 $26,645 $ � $ 45,584
Goodwill acquired during the year � � 3,296 3,296
Impairment losses (15,122) � � (15,122)

Balance as of December 31, 2002 3,817 26,645 3,296 33,758
Goodwill acquired during the year � � 1,267 1,267

Balance as of December 31, 2003 $ 3,817 $26,645 $4,563 $ 35,025

The following is a reconciliation of reported net income to adjusted net income subsequent to the adoption of SFAS No. 142 (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Restated
Reported net earnings (loss) applicable to common shares $(23,152) $(119,672) $3,709
Elimination of goodwill amortization � � 3,873

Adjusted net earnings (loss) applicable to common shares $(23,152) $(119,672) $7,582

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share � as
reported $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.07

Adjusted basic and diluted earnings (loss) per common share $ (0.45) $ (2.35) $ 0.15

(11) Intangible Assets
A summary of intangible assets, included in other assets, net, is as follows (in thousands):

As of December 31, 2003 As of December 31, 2002

Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
Amount Amortization Net Amount Amortization Net

Proprietary technology $ 7,317 $(6,571) $ 746 $ 7,317 $(5,832) $1,485
Patents 3,789 (1,688) 2,101 3,789 (890) 2,899
Customer list 300 (103) 197 300 (63) 237
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Non-compete agreements 300 (300) � 300 (266) 34

Total $11,706 $(8,662) $3,044 $11,706 $(7,051) $4,655
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Total amortization expense, excluding amortization of goodwill, for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 was $1.1 million,
$1.4 million and $1.1 million, respectively. A summary of the estimated amortization expense for the next five years is as follows (in
thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2004 $561
2005 $552
2006 $424
2007 $275
2008 $267

(12) Accrued Expenses
A summary of accrued expenses is as follows (in thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Compensation, including compensation-related taxes and commissions $ 6,223 $ 5,756
Product warranty 3,433 2,914
Severance (see Note 2) 192 1,009
Abandoned non-cancelable lease obligations (see Note 2) 640 1,345
Accrued property tax 1,691 1,916
Other 3,654 4,270

Total accrued expenses $15,833 $17,210

The Company warrants that all manufactured equipment will be free from defects in workmanship, materials and parts. Warranty periods
range from 90 days to three years from the date of original purchase, depending on the product. The Company provides for estimated warranty
as a charge to cost of sales at time of sale, which is when estimated future expenditures associated with such contingencies become probable and
reasonably estimated. However, new information may become available, or circumstances (such as applicable laws and regulations) may
change, thereby resulting in an increase or decrease in the amount required to be accrued for such matters (and therefore a decrease or increase
in reported net income in the period of such change). A summary of warranty activity is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Balance at beginning of period $ 2,914 $ 4,669 $ 6,302
Accruals for warranties issued during the period 2,885 1,679 2,132
Settlements made (in cash or in kind) during the period (2,366) (3,434) (3,765)

Balance at end of period $ 3,433 $ 2,914 $ 4,669

Edgar Filing: INPUT OUTPUT INC - Form 10-K/A

77



(13) Notes Payable, Long-term Debt and Lease Obligations
In December 2003, the Company issued $60.0 million of convertible senior notes, which mature on December 15, 2008. The notes bear

interest at an annual rate per annum of 5.5%, payable semi-annually. The notes, which are not redeemable prior to their maturity, are convertible
into the Company�s common stock at an initial conversion rate of 231.4815 shares per $1,000 principal amount of notes (a conversion price of
$4.32), which represents 13,888,888 total common shares. The Company paid $3.5 million in underwriting
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and professional fees, which have been recorded as deferred financing costs and are being amortized over the term of the notes.

In May 2003, the Company financed $0.5 million of insurance costs through the execution of a short-term note payable. The principal and
interest are due on a monthly basis bearing an interest rate of 5.75%, with final payment due in February 2004. In August 2003, the Company
financed an additional $1.4 million of insurance costs with similar terms except final payment is due in May 2004. The unpaid balance under
these notes payable at December 31, 2003 was $0.9 million.

In August 2002, in connection with the repurchase of Preferred Stock, the Company issued a $31.0 million unsecured promissory note due
May 7, 2004, which bore interest at 8% per year until May 7, 2003, at which time the interest rate increased to 13%. Interest was payable in
quarterly payments, with all principal and unpaid interest due on May 7, 2004. The Company recorded interest on this note at an effective rate of
approximately 11% per year over the life of the note. In May 2003, the Company repaid $15.0 million of the note and in December 2003, the
Company repaid, in full, the remaining outstanding principal of $16.0 million. The note restricted cash dividends in excess of $5.0 million per
year while the note was outstanding.

In July 2002, in connection with the acquisition of AXIS, the Company entered into a $2.5 million three-year unsecured promissory note
payable to the former shareholders of AXIS, bearing interest at 4.34% per year. Principal is payable in quarterly payments of $0.2 million plus
interest, with final payment due in July 2005. The unpaid balance at December 31, 2003 was $1.5 million.

In August 2001, the Company sold its corporate headquarters and manufacturing facility located in Stafford, Texas for $21.0 million.
Simultaneous to the sale, the Company entered into a non-cancelable lease with the purchaser of the property. The lease has a twelve-year term
with three consecutive options to extend the lease for five years each. The Company has no purchase option pursuant to the lease. As a result of
the lease terms, the commitment was recorded as a twelve-year $21.0 million lease obligation with an implicit interest rate of 9.1%. The unpaid
balance at December 31, 2003 was $18.8 million. The Company paid $1.7 million in commissions and professional fees, which have been
recorded as deferred financing costs and are being amortized over the twelve-year term of the obligation. At June 30, 2003, the Company failed
to meet the tangible net worth requirement under this lease. Therefore, in the third quarter of 2003, the Company provided a letter of credit to the
landlord of the property in the amount of $1.5 million. To secure the issuance of the letter of credit, the Company was required to deposit
$1.5 million with the issuing bank. This letter of credit will remain outstanding until the Company is back in compliance with the tangible net
worth requirement for eight consecutive quarters, or until the expiration of the eighth year of the lease, which is in 2009. The deposit has been
classified as a long-term other asset.

In January 2001, in connection with the acquisition of Pelton Company, Inc. (Pelton), the Company entered into a $3.0 million two-year
unsecured promissory note payable to a former shareholder of Pelton, bearing interest at 8.5% per year. This note was paid in full in February
2003.
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A summary of future principal obligations under the notes payable, long-term debt and lease obligations is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2004 $ 2,687
2005 1,840
2006 1,470
2007 1,610
2008 61,763
2009 and thereafter 11,833

Total $81,203

(14) Stockholders� Equity
Series B and Series C Preferred Stock. In 1999, SCF-IV L.P., (SCF), a Houston-based private equity fund specializing in oil service

investments, purchased, in a privately negotiated transaction, 40,000 shares of Series B Cumulative Preferred stock and 15,000 shares of
Series C Convertible Preferred Stock (the Preferred Stock) at a purchase price of $1,000 per share (the Stated Value), for an aggregate of
$55.0 million. The Preferred Stock earned an 8% dividend, of which the Company paid 1% quarterly in cash and accrued the balance to increase
the Adjusted Stated Value ($1,000 per share Stated Value plus accrued and unpaid dividends) of the Preferred Stock.

The Preferred Stock became convertible at the option of SCF on May 7, 2002. Under its terms, the number of shares into which the
Preferred Stock would have been convertible was the greater of (i) Stated Value divided by approximately $8.14 per share or (ii) Adjusted Stated
Value divided by the average market price of common stock during the ten-day trading period immediately prior to conversion. The Company
had the right, without the holder�s consent, to redeem for cash up to one-half of any Preferred Stock tendered for conversion based on the
Adjusted Stated Value of such Preferred Stock on the conversion date.

On August 6, 2002, the Company repurchased all Preferred Stock from SCF. If SCF had converted all of the Preferred Stock on August 6,
2002, and the Company had declined to exercise their redemption rights, SCF would have received about 9.2 million shares of common stock,
representing 15.3% of the Company�s total outstanding common stock after giving effect to the conversion. In exchange for the Preferred Stock,
the Company paid SCF $30.0 million in cash at closing, issued SCF a $31.0 million unsecured promissory note due May 7, 2004 and granted
SCF a warrant to purchase 2,673,517 shares of common stock at $8.00 per share through August 5, 2005. The Note bore interest at 8% per
annum until May 7, 2003, at which time the interest rate increased to 13%. The Company recorded interest on this note at an effective rate of
approximately 11% per year. In December 2003, the Company paid the Note in full and terminated the warrant by exchanging 125,000 of its
common stock for the warrant. The difference in the fair value of the consideration granted to SCF and the carrying value of the Preferred Stock
on the Company�s balance sheet ($68.8 million) was added to net earnings available to common shareholders in the calculation of earnings per
share. The difference represents the foregone return to the preferred shareholder and is treated similarly as a dividend; accordingly, a negative
dividend of $2.5 million was recognized upon the repurchase. Immediately preceding the closing of this transaction, David C. Baldwin, the
elected representative of the holder of the Preferred Stock, resigned from the board of directors.

Under the terms of a registration rights agreement, SCF had the right to demand that the Company file a registration statement for the resale
of the shares of common stock SCF acquired upon exercise of the warrant. If the Company was acquired in a business combination pursuant to
which the stockholders received less than 60% of the aggregate consideration in the form of publicly traded common equity, then the holder of
the
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warrant had the option to require the Company to acquire the warrant at its fair value as determined by the Black-Scholes valuation model as
further refined by the terms of the warrant agreement. Because the Company might have been required to repurchase the warrant in these limited
circumstances, the warrant was classified as a current liability on the balance sheet and the Company recorded any change in value as a credit or
charge to the consolidated statement of operations. The change in the fair value of the warrant in 2003 until its termination and in 2002 from the
date of its issuance resulted in other income of $1.8 million and $3.3 million, respectively. Fair value was determined using the Black-Scholes
valuation model. The key variables used in valuing the warrant were contractually specified and were as follows: risk-free rate of return of
Treasury notes having an approximate duration of the remaining term of the warrant and expected stock price volatility of 60%.

Stockholders Rights Plan. The Company�s board of directors has adopted a stockholder rights plan. The stockholder rights plan was adopted
to give the Company�s board of directors increased power to negotiate in the Company�s best interests and to discourage appropriation of control
of the Company at a price that is unfair to its stockholders. It is not intended to prevent fair offers for acquisition of control determined by the
Company�s board of directors to be in the best interest of the Company and its stockholders, nor is it intended to prevent a person or group from
obtaining representation on or control of the Company�s board of directors through a proxy contest, or to relieve the Company�s board of directors
of its fiduciary duty to consider any proposal for acquisition in good faith.

The stockholder rights plan involved the distribution of one preferred share purchase �right� as a dividend on each outstanding share of the
Company�s common stock to all holders of record on January 27, 1997. Each right will entitle the holder to purchase one one-thousandth of a
share of the Company�s Series A Preferred Stock at an purchase price of $200 per one one-thousandth of a share of Series A Preferred Stock,
subject to adjustment. The rights trade in tandem with the Company�s common stock until, and become exercisable following, the occurrence of
certain triggering events. The board of directors retains the right to discontinue the stockholder rights plan through the redemption of all rights or
to amend the stockholder rights plan in any respect prior to the Company�s announcement of the occurrence of any such triggering event,
including the acquisition of 20% or more of the Company�s voting stock by an acquirer. The rights will expire at the close of business on
January 27, 2007, unless earlier redeemed by the Company.

Treasury Stock. In October 2001, the Company�s Board of Directors authorized the repurchase of up to 1,000,000 shares of common stock in
the open market and privately negotiated transactions at such prices and at such times as management deems appropriate. Under this repurchase
program the Company had repurchased 40,000 shares of common stock for a total purchase price of $0.2 million at an average price of $3.97 per
share for the year ended December 31, 2002. During 2003, the Company purchased 16,939 shares at an average price of $4.78 per share and
issued 22,814 of treasury shares to the Board of Directors in lieu of directors� fees. At December 31, 2003, the Company owned 777,423 shares
of treasury stock.

Stock Option Plans. The Company has adopted a stock option plan for eligible employees, which, together with previous plans, provides for
the granting of options to purchase a maximum of 11,200,000 shares of common stock. The options under these plans generally vest in equal
annual installments over a four-year period beginning on the anniversary of the date of grant and have a term of ten years. The Company has
also adopted a director�s stock option plan, which provides for the granting of options to purchase a maximum of 700,000 shares of common
stock by non-employee directors. The vesting schedule under this plan is determined based upon the years of service. The maximum vesting
period is equal annual installments over a three-year period beginning on the anniversary of the date of grant. The options have a term of ten
years.

Effective March 31, 2003, the Company granted its President and Chief Executive Officer stock options to purchase 1,325,000 shares of
common stock of the Company at an exercise price of $6.00 per share. The options vest in equal monthly installments over a three-year period
beginning on the anniversary of the date of
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grant and have a term of ten years. The market price of the Company�s common stock at the close of business on March 31, 2003 was $3.60.

At December 31, 2003, 353,358 shares remained available for issuance pursuant to these plans. Transactions under the stock option plans
are summarized as follows:

Option Price Available for
Per Share Outstanding Vested Grant

January 1, 2001 $2.03 - $30.00 4,778,478 2,322,559 2,993,572
Granted 8.45 - 12.45 929,000 � (929,000)
Vested � � 860,632 �
Exercised 2.03 - 11.00 (326,921) (326,921) �
Canceled/forfeited 2.03 - 29.69 (519,757) (404,508) (617,464)

December 31, 2001 3.50 - 30.00 4,860,800 2,451,762 1,447,108
Granted 4.35 - 9.50 870,500 � (870,500)
Vested � � 923,706 �
Exercised 3.50 - 8.19 (163,234) (163,234) �
Canceled/forfeited 3.50 - 23.88 (570,023) (165,100) 233,500

December 31, 2002 3.91 - 30.00 4,998,043 3,047,134 810,108
Increase in shares authorized � � � 1,500,000
Granted 3.30 - 6.00 2,425,500 � (2,425,500)
Vested � � 1,154,970 �
Canceled/forfeited 3.35 - 29.69 (1,834,711) (1,732,509) 468,750

December 31, 2003 $3.30 - $30.00 5,588,832 2,469,595 353,358

Stock options outstanding at December 31, 2003 are summarized as follows:

Weighted
Average Weighted
Exercise Weighted Average
Price of Average Exercise Price

Option Price Outstanding Remaining of Vested
Per Share Outstanding Options Contract Life Vested Options

$3.30 - $3.93 769,500 3.36 9.1 10,000 3.81
3.94 -  7.85 2,747,714 5.85 7.7 1,041,394 5.91
7.86 - 11.78 1,295,750 9.80 7.2 659,333 9.73

11.79 - 15.70 119,100 13.11 4.4 102,100 13.23
15.71 - 19.63 272,218 17.71 2.9 272,218 17.71
19.64 - 23.55 257,150 21.71 3.5 257,150 21.71
23.56 - 27.48 17,200 24.62 4.3 17,200 24.62
27.49 - 30.00 110,200 29.35 3.0 110,200 29.35

$3.30 - $30.00 5,588,832 8.40 7.2 2,469,595 11.35
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The Company has elected to continue to follow the intrinsic value method of accounting as prescribed by APB Opinion No. 25. See Note 1
of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for a summary of the net earnings (loss) impact if the Company had adopted the fair value
method of accounting for stock-based compensation of SFAS No. 123.
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Restricted Stock Plans. The Company has adopted restricted stock option plans which provide for the award of up to 300,000 shares of
common stock to key officers and employees. Ownership of the common stock will vest over a period as determined by the Company in its sole
direction. Shares awarded may not be sold, assigned, transferred, pledged or otherwise encumbered by the grantee during the vesting period.
Except for these restrictions, the grantee of an award of shares has all the rights of a common stockholder, including the right to receive
dividends and the right to vote such shares. At December 31, 2003, there were 158,515 shares outstanding, which are scheduled to vest over a
period through June 7, 2006. At December 31, 2003 there are 87,652 shares available for future awards under these plans.

The market value of shares of common stock granted under the restricted stock plans were recorded as unamortized restricted stock
compensation and reported as a separate component of stockholders� equity. The restricted stock compensation is amortized over the vesting
period. For the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 the Company recognized amortization of restricted stock of $(0.2) million,
$0.4 million and $0.2 million, respectively. The restricted stock credit for the year ended December 31, 2003 related to the cancellation of
unvested restricted stock associated with the Company�s former President and Chief Operating Officer and its former Vice President of Business
Development.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan. In April 1997, the Company adopted the Employee Stock Purchase Plan, which allows all eligible
employees to authorize payroll deductions at a rate of 1% to 15% of base compensation for the purchase of the Company�s common stock. The
purchase price of the common stock will be the lesser of 85% of the closing price on the first day of the applicable offering period (or most
recently preceding trading day) or 85% of the closing price on the last day of the offering period (or most recently preceding trading day). Each
offering period is six months and commences on January 1 and July 1 of each year. There were 127,122; 117,876 and 102,186 shares purchased
by employees during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

(15) Acquisitions
In July 2002, the Company acquired all of the outstanding capital stock of AXIS for $2.5 million of cash and issued a $2.5 million

three-year unsecured promissory note. Under the terms of the agreement the Company was obligated to pay additional consideration to the
former shareholders of AXIS at an amount equal to 33.33% of AXIS� adjusted EBITDA for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2004 and 2005,
exceeding a minimum threshold of $1.0 million. There was no limitation to the maximum additional consideration which could have been paid.
In August 2003, the Company paid $1.3 million in additional consideration to the former shareholders of AXIS to settle all future contingent
obligations. This additional consideration was recorded as an increase to goodwill.

AXIS is a seismic data service company based in Denver, Colorado, which provides specialized seismic data processing and integration
services to major and independent exploration and production companies. The Company acquired AXIS as part of its strategy of deploying
VectorSeis technology for land, in-well and ocean bottom environments, by allowing the Company to offer both its VectorSeis technology and a
related service of interpreting multi-component data.

In May 2002, the Company acquired certain assets of S/ N Technologies (S/ N) for $0.7 million of cash. The assets acquired from S/ N
included proprietary technology applicable to solid streamer products used to acquire 2D, 3D and high-resolution marine seismic data. However,
in May 2003 the Company determined that it would no longer continue the internal development of the solid streamer project. As such, the
acquired assets of S/ N were impaired and other assets associated with this project were written off as of March 31, 2003. See further discussion
of this impairment at Note 4 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

In January 2001, the Company acquired all the outstanding capital stock of Pelton for approximately $6.0 million in cash and a $3.0 million
two-year unsecured promissory note. Pelton is based in Ponca City,
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Oklahoma and designs, manufactures and sells seismic vibrator control systems, vibrator positioning systems and explosive energy control
systems.

The acquisitions were accounted for by the purchase method, with the purchase price allocated to the fair value of assets purchased and
liabilities assumed. The allocation of the purchase price, including related direct costs, for the acquisition of AXIS, S/ N and Pelton are as
follows (in thousands):

Acquired in
Acquired in 2002 2001

AXIS S/N Pelton

Fair values of assets and liabilities
Net current assets $ 395 $ � $ 5,266
Property, plant and equipment 354 85 373
Intangible assets 1,142 603 2,985
Goodwill 4,563 � 1,984
Long-term liabilities (224) � �

Total allocated purchase price 6,230 688 10,608
Less non-cash consideration � note payable 2,500 � 3,000
Less cash of acquired business 501 � 2,032

Cash paid for acquisition, net of cash acquired $3,229 $688 $ 5,576

The consolidated results of operations of the Company include the results of AXIS, S/ N and Pelton from the date of acquisition. Pro-forma
results prior to the acquisition date were not material to the Company�s consolidated results of operations. The intangible asset of AXIS relates to
proprietary technology, which is being amortized over a 4-year period. The intangible assets of Pelton primarily relate to acquired patents and
are being amortized over a weighted-average useful life of 11 years. The goodwill of AXIS was assigned to the Processing reporting unit and is
fully deductible for tax purposes. The goodwill of Pelton was assigned to the analog land products reporting unit, a reporting unit within the
Company�s Land Imaging segment.

(16) Segment and Geographic Information
The Company evaluates and reviews results based on three segments, Land Imaging, Marine Imaging and Processing, to allow for increased

visibility and accountability of costs and more focused customer service and product development. The Company measures segment operating
results based on earnings (loss) from operations.

Prior to December 31, 2003, the Company included Processing within the Land Imaging segment due to its relatively low contribution to
their operations. However, during 2003 as the Company re-evaluated its business strategies, the Company believes it will be an increasing
portion of their business and should be reported as a separate segment. A summary of segment information, restated for prior years to reflect the
Processing segment, is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001
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Net sales:
Land Imaging $108,545 $ 63,032 $162,256
Marine Imaging 35,694 53,357 49,794
Processing 5,794 2,194 �

$150,033 $118,583 $212,050
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Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Earnings (loss) from operations
Land Imaging $ (2,568) $(46,450) $ 13,718
Marine Imaging (778) 6,878 5,662
Processing 977 (938) �
Corporate (18,925) (23,055) (11,475)

$(21,294) $(63,565) $ 7,905

Depreciation and amortization
Land Imaging $ 4,222 $ 7,260 $ 8,685
Marine Imaging 2,891 1,701 3,537
Processing 689 417 �
Corporate 3,642 3,859 5,313

$ 11,444 $ 13,237 $ 17,535

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Restated
Total assets:

Land Imaging $ 99,174 $ 96,754
Marine Imaging 63,123 62,359
Processing 8,133 7,203
Corporate 78,774 83,278

$249,204 $249,594

Total assets by geographic area:
North America $216,761 $206,789
Europe 26,842 41,679
Middle East 5,601 1,126

$249,204 $249,594

Intersegment sales are insignificant for all periods presented. Corporate assets include all assets specifically related to corporate personnel
and operations, a majority of cash and cash equivalents, and all facilities that are jointly utilized by segments. Depreciation and amortization
expense is allocated to segments based upon use of the underlying assets.
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A summary of net sales by geographic area follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

North America $ 34,813 $ 34,295 $ 79,115
Middle East 10,231 2,013 46,189
Europe 19,976 34,151 27,034
Asia Pacific 44,693 15,312 25,530
Commonwealth of Independent States 19,991 21,178 23,544
Latin America 15,438 7,227 3,772
Africa 4,876 4,050 6,865
Other 15 357 �

$150,033 $118,583 $212,050

Net sales are attributed to individual countries on the basis of the ultimate destination of the equipment, if known; if the ultimate destination
is not known, it is based on the geographical location of initial shipment.

Net sales to individual customers representing 10% or more of net sales were as follows:

Years Ended
December 31,

Customer 2003 2002 2001

A 3% 11% 37%
B 4% 10% 1%
C 28% 3% 2%

(17) Income Taxes
Components of income taxes follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Restated
Federal $(1,968) $ 8 $(1,116)
Foreign 1,914 (2,484) 4,917
State and local 402 403 303
Deferred � 58,843 (976)

Total income tax expense $ 348 $56,770 $ 3,128
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A reconciliation of the expected income tax expense on earnings (loss) before income taxes using the statutory Federal income tax rate of
35% for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001 to income tax expense is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Restated
Expected income tax (benefit) expense at 35% $(8,012) $(21,684) $ 4,365
Foreign taxes, net (1,487) (1,547) 1,729
State and local taxes 261 262 197
Return to provision 5,106 (5,221) �
Deferred tax asset valuation allowance 4,289 84,719 (3,991)
Nondeductible amortization 165 266 979
Other 26 (25) (151)

Total income tax expense $ 348 $ 56,770 $ 3,128

The tax effects of the cumulative temporary differences resulting in the net deferred income tax asset (liability) are as follows (in
thousands):

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Current deferred:
Deferred income tax assets:

Accrued expenses $ 767 $ 1,790
Allowance accounts 5,786 12,279
Inventory 397 512

Total current deferred income tax asset 6,950 14,581
Valuation allowance (6,950) (14,581)

Net current deferred income tax asset $ � $ �

December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Restated
Noncurrent deferred:

Deferred income tax assets:
Basis in identified intangibles $ 10,372 $ 12,239
Net operating loss carryforward 53,574 50,890
Basis in research and development 29,908 20,620
Alternative minimum tax credit 1,336 1,336
Other 1,664 1,504
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Total deferred income tax asset 96,854 86,589
Valuation allowance (94,922) (83,002)

Net non-current deferred income tax asset 1,932 3,587
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December 31, December 31,
2003 2002

Restated
Deferred income tax liabilities:

Basis in property, plant and equipment (783) (2,438)

Net non-current deferred income tax asset $1,149 $ 1,149

In 2002, the Company recorded an additional valuation allowance resulting in a charge of $58.8 million. Subsequent to that date the
Company has continued to record a valuation allowance for substantially all of its net deferred tax assets, which are primarily net operating loss
carryforwards. The Company currently does not recognize a benefit from net operating losses. The establishment of this valuation allowance
does not affect the Company�s ability to reduce future tax expense through utilization of prior years net operating losses. At December 31, 2003
and 2002, the unreserved deferred income tax asset of $1.1 million represents the Company�s prior Alternative Minimum Tax payments that are
recoverable through the carryback of net operating losses.

The valuation allowance was calculated in accordance with the provisions of SFAS No. 109, �Accounting for Income Taxes,� which places
primary importance on the Company�s cumulative operating results in the most recent three-year period when assessing the need for a valuation
allowance. The Company�s results for those periods were heavily affected by both industry conditions, and deliberate and planned business
restructuring activities in response to the prolonged downturn in the seismic equipment market, as well as heavy expenditures on research and
development. Nevertheless, recent losses represented sufficient negative evidence to establish an additional valuation allowance. The Company
has continued to reserve for substantially all of its net deferred tax assets and will continue until there is sufficient evidence to warrant reversal.
At December 31, 2003, the Company had net operating loss carry-forwards of $153 million, which expire over the next 16 to 20 years.

Included within Other Long-Term Liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheets at December 31, 2002 is $4.2 million which primarily
consists of reserves for various foreign and state tax matters. As of December 31, 2003, that balance had been decreased to $3.1 million due to
closure of certain state tax matters.

(18) Operating Leases
Lessee. The Company leases certain equipment, offices and warehouse space under non-cancelable operating leases. Rental expense was

$1.4 million, $2.1 million and $1.8 million for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively.

A summary of future rental commitments under non-cancelable operating leases is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2004 $2,453
2005 806
2006 559
2007 374
2008 928

Total $5,120
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Lessor. The Company leases seismic equipment to customers under operating leases of two years or less. At December 31, 2003, the total
cost of equipment leased or held for lease was $13.3 million, less
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accumulated depreciation of $8.6 million. The Company also leases under-utilized facilities under various lease and sub-lease agreements. A
summary of lease revenues is as follows (in thousands):

Years Ended December 31,

2003 2002 2001

Equipment rental $4,348 $2,750 $3,749
Facility rental 981 1,297 736

Total rentals $5,329 $4,047 $4,485

A summary of future minimum non-cancelable lease and sublease income is as follows (in thousands):

Equipment
Years Ended December 31, Rental Sublease

2004 $2,219 $1,557
2005 106 337
2006 � 162
2007 � 14

Total $2,325 $2,070

(19) Benefit Plans
401(k). The Company has a 401(k) retirement savings plan which covers substantially all employees. Employees may voluntarily contribute

up to 60% of their compensation, as defined, to the plan. The Company, effective June 1, 2000, adopted a company matching contribution to the
401(k) plan. The Company matches the employee contribution at a rate of 50% of the first 6% of compensation contributed to the plan.
Company contributions to the plan were $1.0 million, $0.8 million and $0.9 million, during the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001,
respectively.

Supplemental executive retirement plan. The Company had a non-qualified, supplemental executive retirement plan (SERP). The SERP
provided for certain compensation to become payable on the participants� death, retirement or total disability as set forth in the plan. The only
remaining obligations under this plan are the scheduled benefit payments to the spouse of a deceased former executive.

Directors Plan. The Company had also adopted a non-qualified, unfunded outside directors� retirement plan. The plan provides for certain
compensation to become payable on the participants� death, retirement or total disability as set forth in the plan. The consolidated financial
statements include pension expense of $0, $0.2 million and $0 for the years ended December 31, 2003, 2002 and 2001, respectively. All benefits
under this plan have previously been frozen.

(20) Selected Quarterly Information � (Unaudited)
A summary of selected quarterly information is as follows (in thousands, except per share amounts):
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Three Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, 2003 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Net sales $41,177 $ 34,562 $30,307 $43,987
Gross profit 8,457 2,974 5,219 11,191
Earnings (loss) from operations (5,057) (10,368) (6,613) 744
Interest expense (1,345) (843) (954) (945)
Interest and other income 840 976 785 278
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Three Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, 2003 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Fair value adjustment and exchange of warrant
obligation 871 (1,712) 1,829 769
Impairment of investment � (2,036) � (23)
Income tax expense (benefit) 588 (297) (133) 190
Net earnings (loss) applicable to common shares $(5,279) $(13,686) $(4,820) $ 633

Basic loss per share $ (0.10) $ (0.27) $ (0.09) $0.01

Diluted loss per share $ (0.10) $ (0.27) $ (0.09) $0.01

Three Months Ended

Year Ended December 31, 2002 March 31 June 30 September 30 December 31

Restated
Net sales $30,213 $ 22,850 $ 28,539 $36,981
Gross profit 6,645 2,164 3,402 5,354
Loss from operations (7,533) (13,987) (32,331) (9,714)
Interest expense (35) (461) (1,247) (1,381)
Interest and other income (expense) 355 546 (10) 591
Fair value adjustment of warrant obligation � � 2,345 907
Income tax expense (benefit) (2,671) 62,362 157 (3,078)
Net loss applicable to common shares $ (5,997) $(77,743) $(29,413) $ (6,519)

Basic loss per share $ (.12) $ (1.53) $ (.58) $ (.13)

Diluted loss per share $ (.12) $ (1.53) $ (.58) $ (.13)

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has restated the consolidated financial statements for 2003 and 2002, respectively. The effect of the
restatement on the three months ended June 30, 2002 was to decrease income tax expense, net loss, and net loss applicable to common shares by
$1.1 million. Basic and diluted loss per share was reduced by $0.02. There was not effect on any other three month period during 2002 or 2003.

(21)     Summary of Significant Charges

The table below summarizes the significant charges during the periods presented (in thousands):

Long-Lived
Asset and Personnel/

Inventory Goodwill Facility Tax
Related Related and Other Valuation Impairment of
Charges Charges Charges Allowance Investment Total
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Restated Restated
Charges for the year ended
December 31, 2001 by
business segment:

Land Imaging $1,784 $ � $ � $ � $ � $1,784
Marine Imaging 1,834 � � � � 1,834

$3,618 $ � $ � $ � $ � $3,618
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Long-Lived
Asset and Personnel/

Inventory Goodwill Facility Tax
Related Related and Other Valuation Impairment of
Charges Charges Charges Allowance Investment Total

Restated Restated
Charges for year ended
December 31, 2001 by
category:

Cost of sales $3,618 $ � $ � $ � $ � $ 3,618

Charges for year ended
December 31, 2002 by business
segment:

Land Imaging $2,958 $15,946 $3,030 $ � $ � $21,934
Marine Imaging 1,384 244 576 � � 2,204
Processing � � 674 � � 674
Corporate 5,206 1,072 58,843 � 65,121

$4,342 $21,396 $5,352 $58,843 $ � $89,933

Charges for year ended
December 31, 2002 by
category:

Cost of sales $4,342 $ � $1,924 $ � $ � $ 6,266
Research & development � � 2,171 � � 2,171
Sales & marketing � � 182 � � 182
General and administrative � � 1,075 � � 1,075
Impairment of long-lived
assets � 6,274 � � � 6,274
Goodwill impairment � 15,122 � � � 15,122
Income tax expense � � 58,843 � 58,843

$4,342 $21,396 $5,352 $58,843 $ � $89,933

Charges for year ended
December 31, 2003 by business
segment:

Land Imaging $ 957 $ 2,500 $ 709 $ � $ � $ 4,166
Marine Imaging 267 1,120 345 � � 1,732
Corporate � 249 � 2,059 2,308

$1,224 $ 3,620 $1,303 $ � $2,059 $ 8,206

Charges for year ended
December 31, 2003 by
category:

Cost of sales $1,054 $ 2,500 $ 691 $ � $ � $ 4,245
Research & development 170 � 471 � � 641
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Long-Lived
Asset and Personnel/

Inventory Goodwill Facility Tax
Related Related and Other Valuation Impairment of
Charges Charges Charges Allowance Investment Total

Restated Restated
Sales & marketing � � (26) � � (26)
General and administrative � � 167 � � 167
Impairment of long-lived assets � 1,120 � � � 1,120
Impairment of investment � � � � 2,059 2,059

$1,224 $3,620 $1,303 $ � $2,059 $8,206

(22) Legal Matters
In the ordinary course of business, the Company has been named in various lawsuits. While the final resolution of these matters could have

an impact on the consolidated financial results for a particular reporting period, the Company believes that the ultimate resolution of these
matters will not have a material adverse impact on the financial position or liquidity of the Company.

(23) Related Parties
In April 2003, the Company invested in Energy Virtual Partners, an entity for whom the Company�s president was founder, president and

Chief Executive Officer. See Note 5 of Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Mr. Lapeyre is the chairman and a significant equity owner of Laitram, L.L.C. (Laitram) and has served as president of Laitram and its
predecessors since 1989. Laitram is a privately owned, New Orleans-based manufacturer of food processing equipment and modular conveyor
belts. Mr. Lapeyre and Laitram together owned 15.2% of the Company�s outstanding common stock as of December 31, 2003.

The Company acquired DigiCourse, Inc., the Company�s marine positioning products business, from Laitram in 1998 and renamed it I/O
Marine Systems, Inc. In connection with that acquisition, the Company entered into a Continued Services Agreement with Laitram under which
Laitram agreed to provide the Company certain accounting, software, manufacturing and maintenance services. Manufacturing services consist
primarily of machining of parts for the Company�s marine positioning systems. The term of this agreement expired in September 2001 but the
Company continues to operate under its terms. In addition, when the Company requests, the legal staff of Laitram advises the Company on
certain intellectual property matters with regard to the Company�s marine positioning systems. During 2003, the Company paid Laitram a total of
$1.2 million, which consisted of $0.6 million of manufacturing services and $0.6 million of rent and other facilities charges. In the opinion of the
Company�s management, the terms of these services are fair and reasonable and as favorable to the Company as those that could have been
obtained from unrelated third parties at the time of their performance.

In March 2000, the Company�s board of directors established an executive �matching� program under which the Company issued one share of
restricted stock for each share purchased by the Company�s senior executives in open-market transactions in March and April of 2000. In
connection with this program, the Company issued 33,000 shares of restricted stock to C. Robert Bunch; a former executive officer of I/O.
Mr. Bunch funded his purchase through a loan from a commercial bank in the amount of $200,000. The Company guaranteed this indebtedness
in 2000 and would have been liable for the entire amount outstanding
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under this loan if Mr. Bunch had defaulted on his obligation under the loan. The Company�s guarantee of Mr. Bunch�s indebtedness expired by its
terms in March 2003. Mr. Bunch left the Company�s employment in May 2003.

(24) Subsequent Event
On February 24, 2004, the Company purchased all the share capital of Concept Holdings Systems Limited, a provider of software, systems

and services for towed streamer, seabed and land seismic operations based in Edinburgh, Scotland, in a privately negotiated transaction. The
purchase price was approximately US$36 million in cash and 1,680,000 shares of the Company�s common stock. The price of the Company�s
common stock on February 24, 2004 was $6.41.
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SCHEDULE II

INPUT/ OUTPUT, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Balance at Charged to
Beginning Costs and Balance at

Year Ended December 31, 2001 of Year Expenses Deductions End of Year

(In thousands)
Allowances for doubtful accounts $ 1,571 $ 382 $ (201) $ 1,752
Allowances for loan loss 10,947 1,577 (1,789) 10,735
Reserves for excess and obsolete inventory 14,041 3,618 (3,308) 14,351
Warranty 6,302 2,132 (3,765) 4,669
Allowance for net deferred tax assets 16,855 � (3,991) 12,864

Balance at Charged to
Beginning Costs and Balance at

Year Ended December 31, 2002 of Year Expenses Deductions End of Year

(In thousands)
Allowances for doubtful accounts $ 1,752 $ 2,543 $(2,620) $ 1,675
Allowances for loan loss 10,735 158 (665) 10,228
Reserves for excess and obsolete inventory 14,351 4,947 (1,131) 18,167
Warranty 4,669 1,679 (3,434) 2,914
Allowance for net deferred tax assets, restated 12,864 84,719 � 97,583

Balance at Charged to
Beginning Costs and Balance at

Year Ended December 31, 2003 of Year Expenses Deductions End of Year

(In thousands)
Allowances for doubtful accounts $ 1,675 $ 569 $ (694) $ 1,550
Allowances for loan loss 10,228 � (7,615)(a) 2,613
Reserves for excess and obsolete inventory 18,167 1,224 (7,518)(b) 11,873
Warranty 2,914 2,885 (2,366) 3,433
Allowance for net deferred tax assets, restated 97,583 4,289 � 101,872

(a) The deduction to the allowance for loan loss is due to the recovery of previously reserved notes and due to certain notes which have been
written off the Company�s books during the year ended December 31, 2003.

(b) The deduction to the reserve for excess and obsolete inventory is due to the sale or disposal of inventory which had been previously
reserved.
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Exhibit
Number Description

3.1 � Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Company�s Transition Report
on Form 10-K for the seven months ended December 31, 2000, and incorporated herein by reference.

*3.2 � Certificate of Amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation, dated October 10,
1996.

3.3 � Amended and Restated Bylaws filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K filed
with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 8, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference.

4.1 � Form of Certificate of Designation, Preference and Rights of Series A Preferred Stock of
Input/Output, Inc., filed as Exhibit 2 to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form 8-A dated
January 27, 1997 (attached as Exhibit 1 to the Rights Agreement referenced in Exhibit 10.4), and
incorporated herein by reference. The Rights Agreement and First Amendment to Rights Agreement are
incorporated by reference herein as Exhibits 10.4 and 10.6 hereof.

4.2 � Indenture of Input/Output, Inc. dated as of December 10, 2003, filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s
Registration Statement on Form S-3 dated January 27, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.1 � Amended and Restated 1990 Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-80299), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on June 9, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.2 � Lease Agreement dated as of August 20, 2001, between NL Ventures III Stafford L.P. and
Input/Output, Inc. filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter
ended September 30, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.3 � Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Director Stock Option Plan, filed as
Exhibit 4.3 to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-80299), filed with
the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.4 � Rights Agreement, dated as of January 17, 1997, by and between Input/Output, Inc. and Harris Trust and
Savings Bank, as Rights Agent, including exhibits thereto, filed as Exhibit 4 to the Company�s Form 8-A
dated January 27, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.5 � Input/Output, Inc. Employee Stock Purchase Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.4 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 333-24125) filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission
on March 18, 1997, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.6 � First Amendment to Rights Agreement by and between the Company and Harris Trust and Savings Bank
as Rights Agent, dated April 21, 1999, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company�s Form 8-K dated April 21,
1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

*10.7 � Registration Rights Agreement by and among the Company and The Laitram Corporation, dated
November 16, 1998.

**10.8 � Input/Output, Inc. 1998 Restricted Stock Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company�s Registration Statement
on S-8 (Registration No. 333-80297), filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on June 9, 1999,
and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.9 � Input/Output Inc. Non-qualified Deferred Compensation Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company�s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2001, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.10 � Amendment No. 1 to the Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1996 Non-Employee Director Stock
Option Plan, dated September 13, 1999, filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on
Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended August 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.11 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Bjarte Fageraas dated effective as of
February 4, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.14 to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference.
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**10.12 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Laura Guthrie dated effective as of
February 4, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.16 to the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year
ended December 31, 2002, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.13 � Input/Output, Inc. 2000 Restricted Stock Plan, effective as of March 13, 2000 filed as Exhibit 10.27 to
the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 2000, and incorporated
herein by reference.

**10.14 � Input/Output, Inc. 2000 Long-Term Stock Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company�s Registration
Statement on Form S-8 (No. 333-49382) dated November 6, 2000 and incorporated by reference herein.

**10.15 � Amended and Restated 1991 Directors Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.3 to the Company�s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 on October 19, 1994, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.16 � Amendment to the Amended and Restated 1991 Directors Stock Option Plan, filed as Exhibit 10.9 to the
Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended May 31, 1997, and incorporated herein
by reference.

**10.17 � Amendment No. 2 to the Input/Output, Inc. Amended and Restated 1991 Director Stock Option Plan,
dated September 13, 1999, filed as Exhibit 10.3 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the
fiscal quarter ended August 31, 1999, and incorporated herein by reference.

10.18 � Registration Rights Agreement dated as of December 10, 2003, between Input/Output, Inc. and Morgan
Stanley & Co. Incorporated, filed as Exhibit 4.2 to the Company�s Registration Statement on Form S-3
dated January 27, 2004, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.19 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Robert P. Peebler dated effective as of
March 31, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.1 to the Company�s Current Report on Form 8-K dated March 31,
2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

**10.20 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and Jorge Machnizh dated effective as of
April 23, 2003, filed as Exhibit 10.28 to the Company�s Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal
quarter ended June 30, 2003, and incorporated herein by reference.

* **10.21 � Employment Agreement by and between the Company and J. Michael Kirksey dated effective as of
January 1, 2004.

10.22 � Share Acquisition Agreement dated February 23, 2004 filed as Exhibit 2.1 to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.23 � Registration Rights Agreement dated February 23, 2004 filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Company�s Current
Report on Form 8-K filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission on March 5, 2004, and
incorporated herein by reference.

10.24 � Input/Output, Inc. Non-Employee Directors� Retainer Plan, filed as Exhibit 4.7 to the Company�s
Registration Statement on Form S-8 dated May 15, 2001 (Registration No. 333-60950), and incorporated
herein by reference.

*21.1 � Subsidiaries of the Company.
�23.1 � Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP.
*24.1 � The Power of Attorney is set forth on the signature page.
�31.1 � Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15(d)-14(a).
�31.2 � Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) or Rule 15(d)-14(a).
�32.1 � Certification of Chief Executive Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350.
�32.2 � Certification of Chief Financial Officer Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §1350.

* Filed with the Company�s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003, filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission on March 12, 2004.

** Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.

� Filed herewith.
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